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1.   REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
You r D i recto r s subm it the i r  repor t  fo r  the f inanc ia l  yea r  ended 3 0 J un e 2018 . 

1.1.   CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Dear Shareho lde r s

I  am p leased to p resent  to you ou r Annua l Repo r t  fo r 2 018 .   The Company’s  u nde r ly ing 

pe r fo r mance du r i ng the year was reasonab ly  s t rong g iven th e cha l leng ing env i ronment w h ich 

we ope rate i n ,  w i th un de r ly ing revenue in creas ing to $5,970, 871 (f rom $ 5,3 0 0,181 the p rev i ous 

year) and op erat ing cos ts  were reduced to $6 ,10 9,325 (f rom $6,95 0,256 the p rev i ous yea r).   The 

net los s fo r th e year was $ 421,23 4 ,  compared to a p rof i t  the p rev iou s year of  $1,728 ,0 4 5 w h ich 

inc l uded a s ign i f icant abn or m a l i tem ($5,0 0 0,0 0 0) f rom reso lv i ng the ongo i ng use of the Ch i ron 

sys tem w i th SA Hea l th .

You r  Board e lected not to pay a d iv idend fo r th e year,  w h i ch ref lect s  the Com pany’s ongo ing 

inves tment  in  deve lop ing ou r  p roduct s and p u r su in g g row th i n A s ia.   We be l ieve your  com pany 

i s  we l l  pos i t ioned to cap ita l i se on th i s  investment to cont inue to increase revenue, retu r n to 

p rof i tab i l i t y,  and s t rengthen sha reh o lde r va lue ove r  the nex t  few year s .

Key h i gh l i ght s fo r  the year inc lude:

• Cont inued g row th in sa les of Mas te rCare EMR;

• S ign i f icant i nc rease i n the Com pany’s Refe r ra l Net SM D subsc r i be r  net wo r k ;

• Fas t  t rack ing of re lease of ou r  Connected Hea l th Reco rds po r t fo l io;

• Recr u i tment of add it iona l key pe rsonne l;

• Develop ing oppo r tun i t ies fo r ou r  p roduct s i n A s ia.

I  wou ld l i ke to thank my fe l low D i recto r s ,  ou r  CEO Mathew Ch er i an, and the ent i re team fo r the i r 

ongo ing loya l t y,  ded i cat ion, and t i re les s  ef fo r t s to ex pand ou r  b rand awareness  and g row the 

Company’s revenu e base, both in Aus t ra l ia and A s ia.  A l so,  thank s to you, ou r  sha reh o l de r s ,  fo r 

you r  cont inued pat ience, and unde r s tand in g of ou r  bus in ess  s t ra tegy.

You r s  s ince re ly,

 

You r s  s ince re ly

You r s  fa i th fu l l y,

Steven Le ig h P ynt

Non - E xecut i ve Ch ai r man
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1.2.   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OPERATIONS REPORT

1.3.   F INANCIAL SUMMARY
You r D i recto r s subm it the i r  repor t  fo r f inanc ia l  yea r  ended 3 0 J un e 2018 .  The P rev ious 

Cor respond in g Pe r iod (PCP) fo r  th i s repo r t  i s  the t we lve m onths to 3 0 J une 2017. 

REVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO JUNE 2018

FINANCIAL RESULT
The f inancia l  re su l t  of  the Com pany fo r  the year ended 3 0 J une 2018 i s  sum mar i sed be l ow:

2018
$

2017
$1 $ Change % Change

Licence Subscriptions 3,880,443 3,415,775 464,668 +14%

Services & Other Revenue 2,090,428 1,884,406 206,022 +11%

Total Revenue 5,970,871 5,300,181 670,090 +13%

Total Operating Expenses 6,109,325 6,950,256 (890,931) -12%

EBITDA (138,454) (1,650,075) 1,511,621 +92%

Net ProÀ t / (Loss) (421,234) (3,271,955) 2,850,721 +87%

1 2017 results have been adjusted for signiÀ cant one-off legal settlement of $5,000,000

The ope rat ions have ach ieved s t rong t rends ac ros s key measu res :

• 14% g row th in  n ew and recu r r ing L icence Subsc r ipt ion s

• 13% g row th in  ove ra l l revenue to jus t  unde r $6M

• 12 % reduct i on i n operat in g ex pen ses

• $1. 5M tu r na round i n EB ITDA to ($138 K) 

• Reduct i on in  Net Los s a f te r abn or ma l i tems f rom ($ 3 .272M) to ($ .421M).

BUSINESS AS USUAL (BAU) - TODAY’S REVENUE
Over 8 0 % of  revenue was gene rated f rom the p rov i s ion of ou r  sof t ware so lut ion s to comm un i t y 

heal th,  hosp i ta l  and p r imar y ca re hea l th bus i nesses ,  dep loyed on cu stom e r’s  I T  i nf ra s t r uctu re 

(“on - p rem ises”).

• Sa l es o f Maste r Care E lect ron ic Med ica l Reco rd (EMR) sof t ware to me nta l  hea l th and 

ch ron ic d i sease hea lthcare p rov i de r s was the fa s tes t  g row ing l ine of bus ines s (up 

3 3%).  Mas te rCa re E MR now rep resent s more than 50 % of tota l  revenue. A number of 

s ign i f icant imp l ementat ions went “ l i ve” th roug h the yea r :

• Te r r i to r y-w ide dep loym ent ac ros s ACT fo r  Menta l Hea l th ,  Jus t i ce, A lcoho l and Other 

D r u gs pub l ic se r v ices;

• Mercy Menta l  Hea lth se r v ices dep loym ent in met rop ol i tan V icto r ia

• Win dana D r ug and A lcoho l Recover y in V icto r ia

• Bass Coast  Com m un it y Hea l th Se r v ices in cou nt r y V icto r ia .

W i th  a con s i s tent ly  s t rong p ipe l in e,  Maste r Ca re EMR i s  expected to cont i nue i t s g row th wel l 

beyond the ex i s t ing 10 0 cus tome rs over  the nex t 18 months . 

Secure Message De l ive r y (SM D) p lat fo rm s a re sof t ware p lat fo r ms that enab le sens i t i ve c l i n ical 

in fo r mat ion to  be en cr ypted, d ig i ta l ly s ig ned and secure ly  sha red bet ween p rov ide r s  to p rotect 

pat ient p r ivacy and conf ident i a l i t y.
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The Company’s  Refe r ra lN et SMD subscr iber  net wor k g rew 13 % process ing 16% mo re messages 

(o r  c l i n ica l docum ents) over the 12 month s .  Refe r ra lNet i s  cu r rent l y engaged in t wo Federa l 

gover n ment p ro ject s  to i mprove i nte roperabi l i t y  w i th Aus t ra l ia’s t wo la rges t SMD net wor k s .

The com plet i on of  the p ro ject  la te r in  2 018 shou l d ex tend the net wor k reach of  Refer ra lNet 

to over 8 0 % of  hea l thcare p rov ide r s that a re enabled fo r  SMD. The inte rope rab i l i t y  p ro ject s 

w i l l  be fo l lowed by cam pa igns to ex tend Refe r ra l Net subscr iber s  beyond V ictor ia focus in g 

p r i mar i l y on A l l ied Hea l th and Spec ia l i s t  p rov ider s .

Over 3,0 0 0 hea l th care o rgan i sat ions in  Aus t ra l ia re ly on G loba l Hea lth on - p remi ses  so f t ware 

appl icat ions to suppor t the i r i nte r na l operat ions  o r  the i r conn ect iv i t y needs. 

The Com pany’s  Bus i nes s - as - Usua l (BAU) po r t fo l io of  app l icat ions  that a re dep loyed “on -

p rem i ses” i s  fo recast  to cont i nu e doub le - d i g i t  g row th ove r the fo reseeabl e futu re.

But Hea l th ca re can not ma i nta in a s tatus  quo or  “Bus ines s - as - Usua l”. 

THE PROBLEM – UNSUSTAINABLE COST ESCALATION IN HEALTHCARE
• 5 0% of u s have o r w i l l  have a ch ron ic d i sease in ou r  l i fet i me; 

• 6 3% of those w i l l  d i e f rom the i r  d i sease;

• 5 0% of u s w i l l  expe r ience a menta l hea lth ep i sode.

The com binat ion of

• an ag ing popu lat ion, 

• unhea l thy,  sedenta r y l i fes t y les , 

• obes i t y 

• th e s t resses  of  mode r n l i fe 

An d

• rap id improvements in  med ica l techno logy, 

• ea r l ie r  detect ion of adver se cond i t ions , 

• mo re med icat i ons  to manage l i fe long cond i t i ons and 

• in novat ive developments  in medi ca l dev ices 

Have c reated a cr i s i s  i n h ea lthcare de l i ve r y.

In  Aust ra l i a h a l f  a b i l l ion do l la r s  i s  spent on hea l thcare each an d ever y day. And i t  i s  g row ing.

App rox imate ly 35 % of heal thcare cost s  a re non - pat i ent fac ing – back of f ice cos t s such as 

ph one conve r sat i ons  bet ween p rov ide r s ,  re - key in g of  in fo r mat ion on paper as va luab le 

c l in ica l i nfo r mat ion i s  exchanged th rough the pat i ent jou r ney, re - key ing of pat ient s to r i es , 

re - do ing tes t s . 

Thousands o f avo idab le deaths occur  du e to poo r access to re l evant in fo r mat ion at  the po i nt 

of ca re.

Heal thcare i s a com pl ex sy s tem of complex s ys tems .  Fund ing of  hea l thca re i n Aust ra l i a i s 

a com bi nat ion of se l f - fund i ng, p r i vate insu rance, Med ica re,  DVA , Wor ke r s Compensat ion, 

T ranspor t  Accident com pen sat i on and a my r iad of s tate and federa l  fund ing p rog rams .

The re a re an es t i mated 15 0,0 0 0 d i f fe rent bus inesses invo lved i n hea l thcare – f rom s tate - funded 

A rea Hea lth Se r v i ces in each s tate,  com monwea l th - fun ded com mun i t y h ea l th o rgan i sat ions , 

p r ivate aged care ope rato r s ,  gene ra l  p ract ice, day hosp i ta l s ,  ove r n ight  hosp i ta l s ,  a l l ied 

heal th se r v ices,  d iagnos t ic  ser v i ces and pha r macies .

G loba l l y,  hea lthcare cost s  a re inc reas i ng at over  5% p.a.  in  rea l te r m s.
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The la rges t g row th in ch ron i c d i sease i s i n deve lop ing econom ies – as  peopl e becom e mo re 

af f luent,  th e p recu r so r s  of  ch ron ic d i sease take ho ld  and eventua l l y cos t s take of f. 

Heal thcare i s  a un ive r sa l p roduct –  d iabetes in  D uba i o r De lh i  i s  bes t t reated the sam e way as 

d iabetes in  Bos ton o r Me lbour ne.

Som e bel i eve th at a s ing l e homogenous sys tem ac ross a l l  of hea l thca re i s  the an swe r.

At  G loba l  Hea l th we th in k d i f fe rent l y.

CONNECTED HEALTH RECORDS
Ou r v i s ion fo r  i mp rov ing consume r outcomes and heal thcare p roduct iv i t y i s  an eco -s ys te m fo r 

d ig i ta l hea l th based on connect iv i t y,  spec ia l i s t  app l icat ions  an d con sume r engagem ent.

Con nected Hea l th Reco rds  w i th consume r s  o r  cus tome r s of  the hea l thca re s ys tem at th e cent re.

Care manage rs  deve lop act iv i t y  ta sks  o r  manag ement p lans ta i lo red to each ind iv idua l’s 

c i rcu mstance th at need to be sha red and act ive ly mon i to red to m ax im ise compl iance. 

Engaged consum e r w i l l  be the key to d i s r upt i ng the esca lat ing cost s  of h ea l th ca re and improv ing 

ind iv idua l hea l th outcom es.  Consu mer s w i l l  choose w ho and w hen to sha re in fo r mat ion;  w i th 

th e i r fami l y and ex te r na l  ca re team. 

Many hea l thcare i s sues can b e addressed i f  a s consu mer s ,  we exerc i se more, eat hea l thy,  s leep 

wel l  and manage s t res s bet te r. 

W i th  the use of  A r t i f ic ia l  I nte l l i gence (A I),  m ach in e lea r n i ng and gam ing techn iques we have a 

g reate r  chance to in f luence behav iou r  mod i f icat ion s –  to s top bad hab i t s ,  lose we ight,  take ou r 

meds,  exe rc i se mo re and becom e m ore soci a l l y  act ive. 

The bet te r  way to s top the esca lat ion in  hea l thca re cos t s  i s  by address in g the deman d s ide.

 EMPOWERMENT, ENGAGEMENT AND COLLABORATION WITH PROVIDERS.
  Support ing consumers throughout thei r  l i fet ime
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TOMORROW’S GROWTH REVENUE
Pr io r to  Ju ly 2017, the Com pany spent an ave rage of $1M each year on p roduct deve lopment 

fo r the nex t- gene rat i on of  sof t ware p l at fo r ms a i med at connect i ng hea l thcare consum er s 

and c l in i c i ans . 

T im in g i s cons ide red one of  th e mos t impor tant facto rs  in the success  of  tech no l ogy comp an i es . 

I n  th e pas t year,  ou r p roduct development was acce le rated. We h ave invested approx i mate l y 

$2M i n new p roduct deve lopment to fas t  t rack the re lease of  ou r  SaaS (Sof t ware as  a Ser v ice) 

p lat fo r m s that togeth e r comp r i se ou r Conn ected Hea l th Records (CHR) po r t fo l io.

These a re des igned fo r m ob i l i t y  an d i nte rnat iona l mar ket s : 

• to wor k on sm ar t  phones , tab l et s and l aptops, 

• to suppor t m u l t ip l e languages,  and, 

• to of fer  an open mar ketp lace fo r th i rd pa r t ies to va lue - add modu les un ique to ce r ta i n 

spec ia l t ies o r ju r i sd ict ions . 

Con nected Hea l th Records  comp r i se of  4 p lat fo r ms:

Maste r Care+ i s  the c loud- based ma r ketp lace whe re hea l thcare p rov ide r s can subscr ibe to 

th e Sof t ware Se r v ices and featu res th ey need – pat ient  record management, p rescr ipt ions , 

med icat ion man agem ent,  d iagnost ic  se r v ices ,  secure messag in g, c l in ica l notes ,  m anag ement 

p lan s,  b i l l i ng,  appoi ntments  etc. W ith in 5 year s ,  Mas te r Care+ i s  expected to rep lace the 

funct iona l i t y of  ou r  ex i s t i ng on - premi ses  hosp i ta l ,  comm un i t y hea l th ,  m ed ica l and a l l ied 

heal th appl icat i ons . 

L i feCa rd i s  fo r  consum er s;  you and I  a s cus tom ers  of  hea l thca re se r v ices , e mpowe red to 

wor k p roact ive ly  w i th ou r  ca re team s. L i fecard i s a l ready ava i lab le in  T ha i,  V ietnam ese and 

Bahasa – the 3 la rges t m ar ket s w i th in A SE AN w ith about 4 50 M consume r s .

Ho tH eal t h  enab les  hea l thcare p rov ide r s to engage w i th the i r  pat ient s ;  w i th v i deo -

confe rencing, the i r  own web - s to re, on l i ne appo i ntment s ,  speci a l - inte res t  g roups and chat s ; 

I n  essence, the on l ine c l in ic fo r hea l thcare p rov ider s  to bu i ld  comm un i t ie s  of  comm on i nte res t. 

Consu me rs can su bscr ibe to mu l t ip l e p rov i de r s e.g .  the i r  dent i s t,  phys io,  GP, n ut r i t ion i s t  etc.

Core to a l l  of these i s  the Refe r ra lN et  SMD p lat fo r m w h i ch enables data to secu re ly  f l ow fo r m 

a s i ng le po int  of  ent r y th rough to col leagues,  funder s and consum e r s .

Over the las t  15 m onths ,  the  CHR  po r t fo l io was success fu l l y  depl oyed to a l im ited number of 

ea r ly  adopte r s  w i th key lea r n i ngs re - facto red in to th e p l at fo r m s ready fo r com merc ia l i sat ion 

and g row th .
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DIGITALLY CONNECTED HEALTHCARE JOURNEY

We operate at the inte r sect i on of tech no logy and hea l thca re wh ich represent s  the bes t of both 

wor l ds  -  hea l thca re i s a defens ive indust r y that  i s  l es s  su scept ib l e to econom ic cycles .  We get 

s ick in  good t im es and in bad; enab l ing tech no logy i s  the fas tes t  g row th i ndust r y i n th e wor ld.

Heal thcare techno logy i s h ard but s t i ck y.

At  G loba l Hea l th ,  ou r s t ra tegy i s  to focus on a path to sus ta in ab le p rof i tabi l i t y.  O ur  i nves tments 

in  new p roduct s and mar ket s  have b een funded by inte r na l ly gene rated funds –  c lo se to $10 M 

ove r  th e recent pas t.

Ou r focus i s on the p revent ion s ide of h ea lthcare;  p lat fo r m s des igned to educate con sume rs 

and en courage be hav i ou r change. 

Ach iev ing sca le w i l l  depend on the abi l i t y to execute ou r  v i s ion in mar ket s  w i th much g reate r 

popu lat ion s of consum e r s . 

The l a rges t popu lat ions and fas tes t  g row ing economies a re in  ou r ne ighbou rh ood -

w i th  a popu lat ion of 650 M consu mer s ac ros s South - Eas t As ia o r A SE AN, the potent ia l  ma r ket i s 

26 t i mes la rger  than Aus t ra l ia .  W ith a GDP a l ready t w ice the s i ze of  Aust ra l i a and g row in g at 

3 0 %, th i s  i s  a key focus go ing fo r wa rd. 

Success fu l l y  ex pand ing to in te r nat iona l ma r ket s g i ves  the sca le of  consume r s we need to make 

an af fo rdab le d i f fe rence.

Over the nex t th ree to f ive yea r s ,  ou r  t rad i t iona l on -p rem i ses  reven ue de r ived f rom Aus t ra l ian 

cus tome rs  w i l l  be augmented w ith revenue f rom our  Connected Hea lth Reco rds p lat fo r ms 

der ived f rom a b roader reg i ona l ma rket.
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For more information: 
T:  61 3  9675 068 8

About Global Health L imited
Globa l  Hea l th i s a l ead ing p rov i de r  of e - h ea l th so l ut ions  to the Aus t ra l ian hea l thca re i ndus t r y 

suppor t ing hea l th care de l ive r y i n hosp i ta l s  and com mun i t y set t ings. 

Connect iv i t y i s  em bedded in G l oba l  Hea l th  app l icat ions  to p romote secure in fo r m at ion sha r ing, 

f i nanc i a l  t ransact ions and the use of  techno logy i n ways that t rans fo r m h ea lthca re de l i ver y. 

P roduct s  in  the G loba l  Hea l th su i te inc l ude: Maste r Ca re EM R, Maste r Care PAS, P r imar yCl in ic, 

Refe r ra l N et,  A l t i tude Cl oud Hos t in g, HotHea lth  and L i feCa rd. 

G loba l  Hea l th  i s  l i s ted on the Aus t ra l ian Stock E xchange w i th i t s  head of f i ce in Me lbou r ne. 

Fo r fu r the r in fo r mat ion about G loba l  Heal th and i t s p roducts ,  v i s i t  w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com.

Enqu i r i es  can be d i rected to Mathew Ch er i an, Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r,  on +61 3 9675 06 8 8 o r 

a l te r nat ive ly by em ai l  to mathew.che r ian@g loba l -hea l th.com.

Fo r and on beha l f  of G loba l  Heal th L im i ted

Mat hew Che r ian

Ch ie f E xecut i ve O f f icer and Managi ng D i re cto r
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2.   DIRECTORS’ REPORT
You r D i recto rs  p resent the i r  repor t  on G loba l Hea l th L im i ted and cont ro l led ent i t ies (‘G rou p’) fo r 

th e f inanc ia l  yea r ended 3 0 J une 2018 .

2.1.   DIRECTORS
The n am es of  the D i recto r s i n of f ice at any t ime dur ing, o r s ince the en d of,  the yea r a re:

Names Position

Steven L. Pynt Non-executive Chairman

Mathew Cherian Executive director

Grant Smith Non-executive director

Robert Knowles Non-executive director

Pattie Anne Beerens Non-executive director

D i rector s have been in of f ice s i nce th e s ta r t  of  the f i nanc ia l  yea r  to th e date of th i s  repo r t 

un less  other w i se s tated.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS
The sk i l l s ,  exper ience and ex pe r t i se of each pe r son w ho i s  a D i recto r  of  th e Com pany at the end 

of the f inanc ia l  yea r i s  p rov ided be low.

1. STEVEN L.  PYNT 

Q ua l i f icat ions

LLB,  BBus ,  MBA , MTax  

Independent N on-E xecut ive Cha i rman

M r P ynt  has been an independent non - execut ive d i recto r  s ince 20 0 0 and Ch ai r man s in ce 20 05 . 

E xper i ence 

He i s  a D i recto r  of  th e Per th  lega l f i r m, MP Comme rcia l  Law ye r s ,  and h i s m ai n a rea of  p ract ice 

i s  i n com merc ia l  l aw i nc lud ing cor porat ion s’  l aw, f ran ch i s ing and cont ract s .  He i s a membe r 

of the Aust ra l i an I n s t i tute of Comp any D i rector s  and was fo r me r ly a member of the Racing 

Pen a lt ies Appea l s T r ibuna l  and Cha i r man of th e Comme rc ia l  T r i b un al of WA .

 

Ot her L i s ted Com pany Cur ren t D i re cto rsh ips 

Eph ra i m Resources L im i ted

Gondwana Resources L im i ted

Forme r D i rec to r sh ips in the las t  3  yea rs  p r io r  to t he cu r rent  yea r 
R ichf ie ld Inte r n at i ona l L i m ited

Spe ci a l  Respons ib i l i t ies
Ch ai r man of  the Board

Member of Aud i t Com mit tee 
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2. MATHEW CHERIAN 

Q ua l i f icat ions

BBus ( I S/ I T ),  M AC S, M A ICD  

 

Ch ie f E xecut i ve O f f icer

E xper i ence
M r Che r ian has been in the in fo r m at ion techno log y in dus t r y s ince 1981.  In  198 5 he es tab l i sh ed 

Wor k i ng Sys tems Pt y  Ltd i n Pe r th ,  Wes te r n Aus t ra l ia .  M r Cher ian was appoi nted CE O of  Wor k ing 

Sys tems So lut i ons L i mi ted i n Januar y 20 02 ,  to re - focus th e Grou p as a sof t ware p rodu ct develope r 

fo r the Hea l thca re secto r.  Th e in i t ia l  phase cu lm inated w ith the re -b rand i ng of the Com pany 

as G loba l Heal th L i m i ted i n Decembe r 20 07.  M r Cher ian p lays an act ive ro le in p roduct s t ra tegy 

and the development of ove rseas ma r ket s fo r the Company.

Ot her Cu r ren t  D i rec to rs h ips
None

Forme r D i rec to r sh ips in the las t  3  yea rs  p r io r  to t he cu r rent  yea r
None

Spe ci a l  Respons ib i l i t ies
Manag i ng D i recto r

 

3. GRANT SMITH

Q ua l i f icat ions

BCom m, A A IM , AS IA   

Independent N on-E xecut ive D i rec to r

E xper i ence
M r Sm i th h as wor ked i n insu rance, supe rannuat ion,  i nves tm ent and fun ds management fo r 

ove r  40 yea rs .  He s ta r ted w i th Nat iona l Mutua l (now A MP) in  the investment s d iv i s ion and was 

respons ib le fo r the es tab l i sh ment of  the funds management bus i nes s fo r Nat i ona l Mutua l . 

I n  198 4 he es tabl i shed an independent funds management g roup and f loated Hospi ta l s  of 

Aust ra l ia -  the f i r s t  hea l thca re inves tment fund in  Aus t ra l ia .  Hosp i ta l s  of  Aus t ra l ia ow ned and 

ope rated a num be r of  hosp i ta l s th roughout Aust ra l ia . 

M r Sm i th was int i mate ly involved in  the bu i ld ing of a number of  hosp i ta l s  inc lud ing St rathf ie ld 

p r ivate,  Southe r n H igh lands P r i vate Hosp i ta l ,  Po r t  Macqua r i e Hosp i ta l  and the refu r b i sh ment 

of a numbe r of  othe r h eal thcare faci l i t ies .  Hosp i ta l s  of Aust ra l ia was u l t im ate l y acq u i red by 

Mayne N i ck less  L im ited . In the pas t 15 year s  M r Sm i th deve loped and b ui l t  the Medica Cent re 

and opened the f i r s t  d ig i ta l  (paper les s)  p r i vate su rg i ca l hosp i ta l  in Aust ra l ia . He i s  cu r rent l y 

invo lved i n devel op ing new hospi ta l s  i n Mel bou r ne. M r Sm ith i s  a l so invo lved i n ut i l i s i ng d ig i ta l 

techno logy to gene rate increased p roduct iv i t y and ef f ic ienc ies  fo r  th e hea l th care sector.

Ot her L i s ted Com pany Cur ren t D i re cto rsh ips
None

            

Forme r D i rec to r sh ips in the las t  3  yea rs  p r io r  to t he cu r rent  yea r 

None

Spe ci a l  Respons ib i l i t ies

Ch ai r man of  the Aud it  Com mit tee
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4. ROBERT KNOWLES 

Q ua l i f icat ions

M AI CD AO 

Independent N on-E xecut ive D i rec to r

E xper i ence
M r Know les i s a fa r me r and com pany d i recto r.  He i s  a d i recto r o f the S i lve r  Cha i n Group of 

Compan ies ,  I PG Pt y Ltd,  D r in k w i se Aus t ra l ia Ltd and Beyond B lue Ltd . 

He i s  Cha i r o f the Roya l Ch i ld ren’s Hosp i ta l .  M r  K now les  was V icto r i an M in i s te r fo r Hea l th f rom 

1996 unt i l  1999 and a membe r of  the V icto r ian Leg i s lat ive Coun ci l  f rom 1976 to 1999.  He h as a l so 

ser ved as Cha i r man of Food Standards Aust ra l i a and New Zea land, as a Commis s ione r  w i th the 

Nat iona l Menta l Hea l th Comm is s i on,  and as an Aged Ca re Compla int s  Comm is s ioner.

Ot her L i s ted Com pany Cur ren t D i re cto rsh ips

None

             

Forme r D i rec to r sh ips in the las t  3  yea rs  p r io r  to t he cu r rent  yea r 

St Joh n of  God Hea lthca re Ltd

Spe ci a l  Respons ib i l i t ies

None

5. PATTIE ANNE BEERENS

Q ua l i f icat ions

LLBcom, GAICD

Independent N on-E xecut ive D i rec to r

E xper i ence

Pat t i e Bee rens has wo r ked in the hea l th ca re secto r  fo r  over 2 0 yea r s and as the CEO of t wo hea lth 

secto r indust r y  a s sociat i ons fo r  ove r  12 year s .  Ms Bee rens’  ea r l y ca ree r was as a com merc ia l 

so l ic i to r  an d then as Company Secreta r y  an d Gene ra l  Manager fo r McEwans L im ited i n 1991.

M s B eerens es tab l i shed and launched Aus t ra l ia’s  f i r s t  hea l th on ly pha r macy f ranch i se in 1998 fo r 

Fau ld ing L i m i ted and, as  Gene ra l  Manager fo r Mayne G roup L i m i ted, took the lead on phar m acy 

sys tems and gove r nme nt re lat ions .  I n  2 0 05 , as  E xecut i ve D i recto r of the N at i ona l Pha r maceut ica l 

Ser v ices A s soc iat ion,  M s Bee rens led the es tab l i shm ent of  the Com m un it y Se r v ice Ob l igat ion 

(a Fede ra l  Gove r nment i n i t ia t ive),  w h ich recogn i sed the im por tance of t ime ly pat ient access , 

to med ic ines acros s Aus t ra l ia .  The C SO comm enced in 20 05 and cont i nu es today to suppo r t 

acces s to med ic i nes in r u ra l  Aust ra l ia .

M s Bee ren s has an ongoi ng ro le as CEO of the Aust ra l i an D iagnost ic  Imag i ng A ssociat ion .

Ot her L i s ted Com pany Cur ren t D i re cto rsh ips

None

             

Forme r D i rec to r sh ips in the las t  3  yea rs  p r io r  to t he cu r rent  yea r 
None

Spe ci a l  Respons ib i l i t ies
None
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2.2.   COMPANY SECRETARY
M r Sam Butche r [LLB(Hon s),  B Ec] was appo inted as com pany sec reta r y w i th ef fect f rom 21 June 

2 018 .   Sam was p rev ious ly com pany secreta r y of  BHP B i l l i ton L i m ited, Z in i fex L im i ted and Bon l ac 

Foods L im i ted.  M r Gl enn Fow l es  was company secreta r y unt i l  N ovem be r 2 017 and M r Joseph 

Ph i l l i ppos was company secreta r y f rom Novem be r 2 017 to June 2 018 .

2.3.   MEETING OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
The num be r of  meet i ngs of the Company’s Board of  D i recto r s and of  each Au di t  comm it tee 

he ld,  w hereby membe rs cou ld at tend in the i r  capacit y du r i ng the yea r en ded 3 0 J une 2 018 , 

and the num be r of  meet ings at tended by each D i rector  we re:

Directors Meetings Audit Committee Meetings

Number of Meetings 

Attended

Number of 

Meetings eligible to 

attend

Number of 

Meetings Attended

Number of 

Meetings eligible 

to attend

Mr M Cherian 6 6 - -

Mr S L Pynt 6 6 2 2

Mr G Smith 6 6 2 2

Mr R Knowles 6 6 - -

Ms P Beerens 6 6 - -

2.4.   DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
Rel evant i nte res t s  of  the D i recto r s and the i r  c l ose ly  re l ated par t ies  in  th e sha res  of  the Com pany 

at the date of  th i s repo r t  a re:

Ordinary Shares Options

Mr M Cherian 18,619,370  150,0001

Mr S L Pynt 257,408  200,000

Mr G Smith 300,000  100,000

Mr R Knowles 20,000  100,000

Ms P Beerens 22,000 -

Total 19,218,778 550,000

 1 Options through a related party, Kye Cherian

2.5.   PRINCIPAL ACTIVIT IES
Dur ing the year the p r i nc ipa l act iv i t ies  of  th e Group con s i s ted of :

1.  the development,  sa l es and suppo r t of  app l icat ion sof t wa re fo r the hea lthcare secto r ;  and

2. the deve lopment of  sy s tems integ rat i on sof t wa re that en ab les data to be secu re ly 

exchanged bet ween m ult i p le,  d i spa rate app l icat i ons  w i th in an ente r pr i se and acros s the 

heal thcare va l ue cha i n.

2.6.   RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

2.6.1.  OPERATING RESULTS
The lo ss of the Grou p fo r  the f i nanc ia l  year  a f te r p rov id ing fo r income tax and e l im i nat ing n on -

cont ro l l i ng equ it y i nte res t s  amounted to $ 421,23 4 (2 017:  p rof i t  $1,72 8,0 4 5).
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2.6.2.  DIVIDENDS
Dur ing the f inan ci a l yea r ended 3 0 J une 2 018 , the Com pany d id not pay a d iv iden d. Deta i l s  of 

d iv ide nds a re d i sc losed in n ote 2 9 of the f inanc ia l  s tatements .

2.7.   REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
I n fo r mat ion on the ope rat ions and f inanc ia l  pos i t ion of the Grou p and i t s  bus iness  s t rateg ies 

and p rospect s i s  set out in the ‘Ch ief E xecut ive Of f i ce r’s  Ope rat ion s Repor t ’  sect ion of  th i s 

An nua l  Repor t.

2.8.   S IGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
The re are no s ign i f icant chan ges in  the s tate of  af fa i r s  of  the G roup dur ing th e f i nanc ia l  yea r 

en ded 3 0 J une 2018 an d up to the date of th i s  repor t.

2.9.   S IGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
The re have been no s i gn i f i cant event s  a f ter  repor t ing date.

2.10.   L IKELY DEVELOPMENTS
The G roup w i l l  cont in ue to pu r sue i t s po l icy of  increas ing the p rof i tabi l i t y and m ar ket sha re of 

i t s m a jo r bus in es s secto r s du r ing the n ex t f inancia l yea r.

2.11.   SHARE OPTIONS
At the date of th i s  repo r t,  the un l i s ted o rd ina r y  sh a res of  G l oba l Hea l th L im i ted under opt ion 

a re:

Date of Issue Date of Expiry
Exercise Price 

per option 

Number Under 

Option*

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000

10 June 2016 10 June 2020 $0.65 310,000

19 December 2016 30 November 2019 $0.75 400,000

19 December 2016 30 November 2021 $0.75 600,000

1,610,000

*Opt ion ho lder s do not have any r ight s to pa r t ic ipate i n any i s sues of  sha res o r othe r inte res t s of 

th e company o r  any othe r ent i t y.  A l l opt ions were i s sued by G loba l Heal th L im ited and ent i t l ed 

th e ho lde r  to one o rd i na r y sha re i n G lob al  Hea l th L im i ted fo r  each opt ion exerc i sed.

Dur ing the year ended 3 0 June 2 018 ,  the fo l low in g event s occu r red:

• 5 30,0 0 0 opt ions w i th an exerc i se p r ice of $ 0.6 5 exp i red on 19 December 2 017

Fo r deta i l s  o f opt i ons  i s sued to d i recto r s  and execut i ves  as  remune rat ion,  refe r  to the 

rem un erat ion repor t.
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2.12.   REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

2.12.1.  PRINCIPLES USED TO DETERMINE THE NATURE AND AMOUNT OF 
REMUNERATION 

Remune rat ion of D i recto r s and key management pe r sonne l  of th e Com pany i s  es tab l i shed by th e 

Boa rd . Rem un e rat ion i s  dete r m ined as pa r t  of  an annua l  pe r fo r mance rev iew, havi ng regard to 

ma r ket facto r s and a pe r fo r mance eva luat ion p rocess .  The remune rat ion f ram ewor k i s  des ign ed 

to a l i gn execut ive rewa rd w i th ach ieveme nt o f s t ra teg ic ob ject ives and the c reat ion of  va lue 

fo r sha reho lde r s ,  and confo r ms to mar ket best p ract i ce fo r  de l ive r y of reward.  Fo r D i recto r s and 

execut ives ,  remunerat ion packages g ene ra l ly  comp r i se sa la r y and superannuat ion.   E xecut i ves 

a re a l so p rov ided w ith longe r- te r m incent ives th rough the emp loyee sha re and sha re opt ion 

schem es,  w h ich act to a l ig n the execut ive’s act ions  w ith  the inte res t s  of  th e sha reho l de r s .   N on -

E xecut ive D i recto r s  a re not ent i t led to  pe r fo r mance - based bonuses.

The Board meets  annua l ly to rev i ew i t s ow n per fo r mance.  The Cha i r m an a l so ho lds ind iv idua l 

d i scus s ions w i th each D i recto r  to d i scus s the i r  pe r fo r m ance.  Th e N on - execut ive D i recto r s a re 

respons ib le fo r  eva l uat ing the per fo r mance of the Ch ief  E xecut ive Of f ice r, w ho i n tu r n eva l uates 

th e per fo r mance of  a l l  other  sen io r execut ives . 

PERFORMANCE BASED REMUNERATION
Pe r fo r man ce based rem un erat ion i s eva luated b ased on spec i f ic  c r i te r i a,  i nc l ud i ng the G roup’s 

bu s ines s  pe r fo r m ance and ach ievem ent of  tu r n ove r  and Net  P rof i t  Af te r Tax (NPAT) ta rgets , 

w hether  long -te rm s t rateg ic ob ject ives a re b e i ng ach ieved and the ach i evement of ind iv idua l 

pe r fo r mance ob ject ives .

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN REMUNERATION AND COMPANY PERFORMANCE
The rem un erat ion p r inc ip les  a re ta i lo red to increase goa l cong r uence bet ween sha reh o lde rs , 

d i recto r s and execut ives .  Two methods have been app l ied to ach ieve th i s  a im, the f i r s t  be ing 

a pe r fo rm an ce bonus based on KP I s ,  and the second be ing the i s sue of opt i ons  to d i recto r s 

and execut ives to encou rage the a l ignme nt of  per sona l and sha reho lder  inte res t s .  The re i s  no 

fo r ma l rem unerat ion po l i cy l ink ing re mune rat i on and th e company’s pe r fo r m ance.

NONͳEXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Fees and payments to N on -E xecut ive D i recto r s ref lect  th e dem ands w h ich a re made on, and 

th e respons ib i l i t ies of,  the D i recto r s .   Non - execut ive D i recto r s’  fees an d payments a re rev iewed 

annua l l y by the Board to ensu re a l l  p ayments  a re approp r iate an d i n l i ne w i th  the ma r ket. 

The max im um am ount of  remune rat ion as  dete r m i ned by sha reho l de r s at the Company’s 

An nua l  Genera l  Meet ing on 24 Novembe r 2 0 0 9 i s  $3 5 0,0 0 0 per an nu m w h ich m ay be d i v ided 

among N on - E xecut i ve D i recto r s  in the manne r dete r m ined by the Boa rd f rom t i me to t ime.  The 

Ch ai r man’s fees a re dete r m i ned i ndependent ly to the fees of Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s based on 

com parat i ve ro les  in  s im i l a r  s i zed compan i es  and secto r s i n the ex te r na l mar ket.   The Cha i r man 

i s  not p resent at any  d i scus s ions re lat in g to dete r m inat i on of  h i s  ow n remunerat ion.  The re we re 

no remune rat ion consu l tants  used du r i ng the year.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The E xecut i ve D i recto r s’  sa la r y and cond i t ions  a re dete r m ined by the Boa rd of  D i recto rs  and 

rev i ewed at  the ex p i r y of  each cont ract pe r iod .

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION 
E xecut ives  a re of fe red a compet i t i ve base pay th at com pr i ses the f i xed component of  pay and 

rewards.   Base pay fo r  sen io r execut ives  i s  rev iewed annua l l y to ensu re the execut ive’s pay i s 

com pet i t ive w ith the ma r ket.   The re a re n o g uaranteed b ase pay in creases inc luded i n any 

sen io r execut ive’s cont ract.
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2.12.2.  DETAILS OF REMUNERATION
Deta i l s  of the remune rat i on of the D i recto r s and the key m an agem ent pe rsonnel of  G loba l 

Heal th L i m i ted a re set out  in  the fo l low ing tab le:

2018
Short-Term 

beneÀ ts
Performance 

related

Post-
Employment 

BeneÀ ts

Other long term 
beneÀ ts

Share-based 
Payment*

Name

Salary and 
or Fees

$

Bonus

$

Superannuation

$

Accrued Long 
Service Leave

$

Shares

$

Total

$

Proportion of 
Remuneration 

that is 
performance 

based

%

Directors:

Mr S L Pynt 51,605 - 4,902 - 7,868 64,375 -

Mr M Cherian 212,534 - 53,027 4,190 - 269,751 -

Mr G Smith 32,036 - 3,043 - 3,934 39,013 -

Mr R Knowles 35,240 - 3,347 - 3,934 42,521 -

MS P Beerens 35,160 - 3,340 - - 38,500 -

Key Management Personnel:

Mr D 

Groenveld
164,383 - 15,616 2,740 15,819 198,558 -

Mr K Jayesuria 134,288 - 24,587 2,435 15,819 177,129 -

TOTAL 665,246 - 107,862 9,365 47,374 829,847 -

 

The re have been no changes i n  D i recto r s and E xecut ives  subseque nt to year end.

2017
Short-Term 

beneÀ ts
Performance 

related
Post-Employment 

BeneÀ ts
Other long 

term beneÀ ts
Share-based 

Payment*

Name

Salary and 
or Fees

$

Bonus

$

Superannuation

$

Accrued 
Long Service 

Leave

$

Shares

$

Total

$

Proportion of 
Remuneration 

that is 
performance 

based

%

Directors:

Mr S L Pynt 41,284 - 3,922 - 9,432 54,638 -

Mr M Cherian 269,034 - 33,381 4,189 - 306,604 -

Mr G Smith 32,037 - 3,043 - 4,716 39,796 -

Mr R Knowles 32,037 - 3,043 - 4,716 39,796 -

Ms P Beerens 18,645 - 1,771 - - 20,416 -

Key Management Personnel:

Mr P Curigliano 

(resigned 28 

Dec 2016)

140,044 - 20,820 - - 160,864 -

Mr K Jayesuria 120,580 - 35,370 2,435 16,002 174,387 -

TOTAL 653,661 - 101,350 6,624 34,866 796,501 -

*  Recogn i se ex pen se of  g rant i ng sha re opt ion s to d i recto r s  and K M P in  p r i o r  yea r s .
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2.12.3.  SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
Remune rat ion and othe r  te r ms of  emp loym ent fo r  key managem ent pe r sonnel  a re fo r mal i sed 

in  se r v ice ag reements .   I t  i s  Com pany po l i cy that emp l oyment cont ract s  conta in p rov i s ions 

fo r te r minat ion w i th not ice o r  payment i n l ieu of not i ce, and fo r  te r m inat ion by the Com pany 

w i thout not i ce fo r  se r iou s mi scon duct o r b reach of cont ract.  The Managing D i recto r i s  ent i t l ed 

to receive a te r m i nat ion payment i n add it ion to  not i ce w h ere the Com pany te r m in ates 

em ployment on g rounds o f i l l nes s o r i ncapaci t y.  The not i ce pe r iod requ i red to be g iven by the 

em ployee o r the Comp any a long w i th any te r m inat ion payments a re set out in  the table be l ow.

Notice period by 

Company

Notice period by 

Employee
Termination Payments

Managing Director

     Mr M Cherian 6 months 6 months 6 months*

Principal Architect

Mr D Groenveld 1 month 1 month None

Chief Operating OfÀ cer

     Mr K Jayesuria 1 month 1 month None

* If termination is by reason of the employee’s illness or incapacity.

2.12.4.  INTERESTS IN SHARES AND OPTIONS

SHARES
The inte res t  of  D i recto r s and the i r re lated ent i t ies i n sha res of the Company as at 3 0 J une 2018 

a re:

Total number of 

shares

Number of 

shares sold

Number of 

shares acquired

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Mr M Cherian 18,619,370 18,619,370 - - - -

Mr S L Pynt 257,408 257,408 - - - 25,000

Mr G Smith 300,000 300,000 - - - -

Mr R Knowles 20,000 20,000 - - - -

Ms P Beerens 22,000 22,000 - - - 22,000

TOTAL 19,218,778 19,218,778 - - - 47,000

D i rector s receive d iv idends f rom the i r  sha reho ld ings in  the no r m al  cour se of  d iv idend payments 

by the Com pany – refe r to note 29 fo r  deta i l s of d iv idends pa id.
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OPTIONS
The inte res t s  of D i recto r s and the i r  re lated ent i t i es in opt ions  of the Comp any as at 3 0 June 2018 

a re:

Total number of 

options  2

Number of 

option granted 

during the year

Number 

of options 

exercised 

during 

the year

Number 

of Options 

vested/ 

exercisable 

at report 

date

Number 

of Options 

unvested 

at report 

date

Option 

type 

(Listed / 

Unlisted)

Exercise 

price per 

Option ($)

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2018 2018

Mr M Cherian1 150,000 150,000 - - - 150,000 - Unlisted $0.65

Mr S L Pynt 200,000 200,000 - 200,000 - 133,333 66,667 Unlisted $0.75

Mr G Smith 100,000 100,000 - 100,000 - 66,663 33,337 Unlisted $0.75

Mr R Knowles 100,000 100,000 - 100,000 - 66,663 33,337 Unlisted $0.75

Ms P Beerens - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL 550,000 550,000 - 400,000 - 416,659 133,341
1 Options through a related party, Kye Cherian     2 Options holders have no rights to participate in any share or interest issue of the entity/other entities. 

2.12.5.  LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
At the end of  th e repo r t in g per iod, a loan of  $24 ,491 was outs tand i ng f rom Key Management 

Pe r sonnel  of w h ich inte res t  o f $1,772 had bee n charged dur ing th e year.   The re we re no loans 

advanced to key management pe r sonnel  du r i ng the yea r (2 017:  $ 4 5,0 0 0).

2.12.6.  OTHER TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The re we re no othe r  t ran sact ions  conducted bet ween the G roup and KMP o r  the i r  re lated 

par t ies ,  apar t  f rom th ose d i sc losed ab ove re l at i ng to equ i t y, com pen sat i on and loan s, that we re 

conducted othe r than in  acco rdance w i th no r ma l emp loyee, cus tom er o r  supp l i e r  re lat ionsh ips 

on te r ms no m ore favou rab le th an those reasonab ly ex pected under a r m’s length dea l in gs w ith 

un re lated pe r sons .

-- End of audited remuneration report –

2.13.   INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES 
Dur ing o r s ince the end of the f inanc ia l  yea r,  the G roup has not, in any respect fo r any pe r son 

w ho i s  o r has been an of f icer  o r d i recto r  of  th e pa rent e nt i t y  o r a re lated b ody co r porate, 

indem ni f ied o r  made any re l evant ag reem ent fo r  i ndem ni f y ing ag ai ns t a l i ab i l i t y,  i nc lud ing 

cos t s and expenses in success fu l l y defend ing lega l p roceed i ng s.

Du r ing o r  s ince the end of the f inanc ia l  yea r the G roup has pa id p rem ium s in respect of a 

cont ract insu r ing the D i recto rs  and of f ice r s  of  a l l  compan i es  i n th e G roup ag ain s t  a l iab i l i t y 

incu r red i n the i r  ro le as  D i recto r s and of f ice r s  of a l l  com pan ies w i th in  the G roup except whe re:

i .  The l iab i l i t y  a r i ses out o f conduct invo lv i ng a w i l l fu l  b reach of  dut y ;  o r

i i .  The re has been a cont ravent i on of Sect ions 182 o r  18 3 of the Cor porat ions Act 20 01.

The tota l  amount of  p re mi ums pa id by the Grou p fo r  D i recto r s an d Of f ice r s L i ab i l i t y In su rance 

was $14 ,870 (2017:  $13 ,610).

2.14.   PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY
No pe r son h as ap pl ied to the Cour t  under sect ion 237 of  the Cor porat i ons Act 2 0 01 fo r l eave to 
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b r i ng p roceed ing s on beh a l f  o f th e Company, o r to i nte r vene in any p roceed ings to w h ich the 

Company i s  a par t y, fo r the pu rpose of  tak in g respons ib i l i t y on beha l f  of  the Company fo r a l l  o r 

pa r t  of  th ose p roceed ings .

2.15.  NON-AUDIT SERVICES
The Comp any’s aud i to r,  Sh ineWin g Aus t ra l ia,  has p rov ided consu l tancy se r v ices regard ing 

ou r tax pos i t ion .  Deta i l s  of  amount s pa id fo r  the i r  s tatuto r y aud i t  dut ies and consu l tancy a re 

deta i led i n Note 23 .

2.16.   ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
A s the ope rat ions of th e G roup a re l i m i ted to computer  sof t ware devel op ment and suppo r t 

and p rofess ion al consu l t ing se r v ices,  th e G roup has min im al  invo lvem ent in  and ex posu re 

to env i ronm enta l r i s k s and i s sues.   The G roup i s not req ui red to compl y w ith any spec i f ic 

env i ronmenta l  Act. 

2.17.   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
I n  recogn i s in g the need fo r  the h ighes t s tandards o f co r porate behav iou r and accountab i l i t y, 

th e D i recto r s  o f the Company suppor t and have adhe red to the p r i nc ip l es to the ex tent out l ined 

in the Cor porate Gove r nance Statement.  The Com pany’s Co r porate Gove r nance Statement i s 

conta in ed i n a sepa rate sect ion of  th i s A nnua l Repor t.

2.18.   AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
A copy of  th e Aud i to r s’  I ndependen ce Decla rat ion as requ i red unde r sect ion 3 07C of the 

Cor porat i ons Act 2 0 01 accompan ies  and fo r ms pa r t  of  th i s repo r t.

S ig ned i n accordan ce w ith  a reso lut ion of the D i recto r s .

Steve n L e igh P ynt

No n-E xecu t i ve Chai rm an
Melbou r ne, 27 Se pte mber 2018



 

 

 

 

2001 to the directors of Global Health Ltd and Controlled Entities 

 
 
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2018 there have been: 
 
(i) No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation 

to the audit, and 
 

(ii) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 
 
 
 
 
ShineWing Australia  
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nick Michael 
Partner 
 
Melbourne, 27 September 2018 
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3.   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Globa l  Hea l th  L imi ted (the Company) and th e Board a re comm it ted to ach iev ing and 

demonst rat i ng h igh s tanda rds of  cor p orate gove r nan ce. Accord ing ly,  un les s s tated othe r w i se 

in  th i s  document,  the Board’s co r p orate gove r nance a r rangem ents compl y w i th  the Pr in ci p les 

and Recomm endat i ons of the A SX Cor porate Gove r nan ce Counci l  (3 rd Ed i t i on -  2 014)  as wel l  as 

cu r rent  s tandards o f b est  p ract ice fo r  the ent i re f inanc ia l  yea r ended 3 0 J un e 2 018 .

The Company and i t s  cont ro l l ed ent i t ies  togethe r  a re refe r red to as  th e Group in  th i s s tatement.

The Board of  D i recto r s  of the Com pany i s  respon s i b le fo r  the co r po rate gove r nance of  the 

G roup.  The D i recto r s a re respons i b le to the sha reho lde r s fo r the pe r fo r mance of  the G roup in 

both the sho r t  and l onger te r m and seek to  ba lance compet ing ob ject ives  in  the best i nte res t s 

of the G roup as a who le.  The Board i s  a l so respons ib le fo r  set t i ng th e s t rateg ic d i rect ion and 

po l i c ies of  the G roup.  The focus i s to enhance the inte res t s of  sh a rehol der s  and othe r key 

s takeho lder s  and to en su re the G rou p i s p rope r ly man aged.

Day to day management of  the Group’s  a f fa i r s and im plementat i on of  the co r porate s t rategy 

and po l ic ies a re de legated by the Board to the Ch ief E xecut ive Of f ice r.

A descr ipt ion of  th e Company’s m ai n cor po rate g ove r nance p ract ices i s  set  out be low. A l l  of 

th ese p ract ices,  un l es s othe r w i se s tated, we re in p lace fo r the ent i re year.

E th ica l  S tanda rds

The Boa rd i s  commit ted to i t s  co re gove r nance va l ues of  in teg r i t y,  respect, t r us t and openness 

among and bet ween board m ember s ,  management,  emp loyees,  cus tom ers  and supp l ie r s . 

These va lues a re ensh r i ned in the Board’s  Code of  Con duct po l icy.

The Code of  Conduct Po l icy,  requ i res a l l  d i recto r s ,  man agement and emp loyees at a l l  t imes to:

• act  honest l y and i n good fa i th;

• exe rci se due care and d i l i gence i n fu l f i l l i ng the funct ion s of  of f ice;

• avo id conf l i ct s  of  inte res t  and make fu l l  d i scl osu re of any potent ia l  conf l ict s ;

• com ply w i th both the l et te r an d sp i r i t  of  the law;

• en courage th e repor t ing and inves t igat ion of un l aw fu l  o r  u neth ica l  behav iou r ;  and

• com ply w i th the sha re t rad ing po l icy out l in ed in th e Code of Conduct.

D i rector s a re ob l iged to be indepen dent in  judg ment and ensu re a l l  reasonabl e s teps a re taken 

to ensu re that the Board’s  co re gover nance va lues a re n ot  com promi sed in any deci s ions made 

by the Boa rd.

Di ve rs i t y  Po l icy
Diver s i t y  in c ludes,  but i s  not  l im i ted to,  gende r,  age, ethn ic i t y an d cu l tu ra l  backg round. The 

Company i s  com mit ted to d i ve r s i t y and recogn i ses the ben ef i t s a r i s i ng f rom em p loyee and 

Boa rd d ive r s i t y and the i mpor tance of  benef i t ing f rom a l l  ava i lab le ta l ent. 

The Com pany’s d ive r s i t y po l icy inc l udes requi rements  fo r the Board to devel op measu rab le 

ob ject ives fo r d i ve rs i t y,  and annua l ly  as ses s  both the ob ject ives and the p rog ress  in ach iev ing 

th em.  A s D i rector  and sen io r execut ive pos i t ion s become vacant and appropr iate l y qua l i f i ed 

cand idates becom e ava i lable, the Board has developed the fo l low ing ob ject i ves :

• ach ieve a d iver se and sk i l led wor k fo rce lead i ng to  cont inuous imp rovement;

• devel op c lear  c r i te r ia fo r behav iou ra l  ex pectat i ons  in  re lat ion to p romot i ng d i ve rs i t y in 

th e wor k env i ronm ent ;

• en su re that pe r sonne l respons ib l e fo r recr u i tment take d ive r s i t y i s su es i nto account when 

cons ide r in g vacan cies ;
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• create a wor k env i ronment th at va lues and ut i l i se s th e cont r ibut ions  of  employees w i th 

d ive r se backg roun ds ,  ex pe r iences and pe r spect ives ;  and

• create awa reness  i n a l l  empl oyees of th e i r  r ight s and respons ib i l i t ie s  w i th regards to 

fa i r nes s , equ i t y and respect  fo r  a l l  aspects  of  d ive r s i t y.

The Board be l ieves i t  has im plemented these object ives th roug hout the Com pany’s wor k fo rce 

and cont i nues to mon i to r and as sess the Comp any’s ef fo r t s  in  th i s  regard.

The numbe r of  women em pl oyed by the Company and the i r  employment cl a ss i f icat ions  a re as 

fo l low s:

2 018 2 017

Num be r Pe rcentage Numbe r Pe rcentage

Women on the Board 1 20% 1 20%

Women in Senior Management - 0% - 0%

Women employees in the Company 11 29% 14 35%

3.1.   COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The re were f i ve d i recto r s  on the Board th roug hout the yea r. Of these, fou r we re non - execut ive 

d i recto r s and one was an execut ive d i recto r,  name ly  the Manag ing D i recto r/Ch ief  E xecut ive 

Of f i ce r. Each year one -th i rd of  d i recto r s and any d i rector  (exc l ud i ng the Manag ing D i recto r ) 

w ho has he ld of f i ce fo r  th ree year s  o r th ree an nu al gen era l  meet in gs (w h icheve r i s  lon ger ) 

m us t ret i re f rom of f ice.   A ret i r i ng d i recto r  i s  e l ig ib l e to seek re - e l ect ion i f  so m inded. The sk i l l s , 

ex pe r ience an d ex pe r t i se re levant to the pos i t ion of  each d i recto r  w ho i s  in of f ice at the date 

of the An nua l  Repo r t  and the i r  te r m of of f i ce are deta i led in the D i recto r s’  Repor t.  The Board 

s t r ives to ach ieve a m i x  of  commercia l ,  f i nanc ia l ,  le ga l ,  m anagem ent,  hea l th indust r y and I T 

s k i l l s  and expe r ience amon g i t s m ember s .

The compos i t ion of th e Boa rd i s dete r m ined i n accordance w i th the fo l low ing pr inc ip les and 

gu ide l ines:

• th e Boa rd shou ld com pr i se at least th ree D i rector s and shou ld m a inta in a ma jo r i t y of 

independent Non - E xecut ive D i rector s ;

• th e Cha i r m an m us t  be an i ndependent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r ;

• th e ro les o f Ch ief  E xecut ive Of f icer  and Ch ai r man m us t not  be pe r fo r med by the same 

pe r son;

• th e Boa rd shou ld com pr i se D i recto r s w i th an app ropr ia te range of q ua l i f icat ions  an d 

ex pe r t i se;  and

• th e Boa rd sha l l  meet regu l a r l y and have ava i l ab le a l l  necessa r y i n fo r m at i on to 

pa r t ic ipate in  an i n fo r m ed d i scuss ion of a l l  i tems of  bus in ess .

When con s ide r ing potent ia l  cand idates fo r  d i recto r sh ip,  the Board as ses ses  q ua l i f ied and 

ex pe r ienced p rofes s i ona l s  and bus i ness  peop le. The Company does not en gage any consu l tants 

to sou rce potent ia l Boa rd m embe r s ,  but re l i es  on th e D i recto r s’  indus t r y contacts to ident i f y 

potent ia l  cand idates based on the i r p ro fess ional and bus iness  reputat ion,  hea l th care se r v ices 

indus t r y expe r ience and othe r  a reas of ex per t i se.  Th e Com pany seek s to ma inta in a d ive r se 

range of  membe rs of the B oard by hav i ng on ly  on e d i recto r d rawn f rom any one p rofess iona l 

backg round at any one t i me.
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3.2.   BOARD MEMBERS 
The D i recto r s in  of f ice at th e date of  th i s s tatement a re:

Name Position

Mr S L Pynt Non-Executive Chairman

Mr M Cherian Chief Executive OfÀ cer and Managing Director

Mr G Smith Non-Executive Director

Mr R Knowles AO Non-Executive Director

Ms P Beerens Non-Executive Director

The re a re cu r rent ly  fou r N on - E xecut ive D i recto r s  who a re cons ide red independent under the 

p r inc ip l es set out be low, and one E xecut i ve D i recto r. 

The Boa rd seek s to ensu re that :

• at any po int in  t i me, i t s  membe rsh i p rep resent s an app rop r ia te ba lance bet ween 

D i rector s w ith ex per i ence an d k now ledge of the G roup and D i rector s w i th an ex te r na l  o r 

f resh pe r spect ive;  and 

• th e s i ze of th e Boa rd i s  conduci ve to ef fect ive d i scus s i on and ef f ic ient dec i s ion - mak i ng .

A s a Board, the D i recto r s a re ex pected to p rov ide the fo l low in g sk i l l s  and k now ledge:

• a ba lan ce of p roven ex pe r t i se, d ive r se sk i l l s  and ex pe r ience in com merce, f inance, 

heal th ca re innovat i on and othe r a reas w h ere sof t ware tech no logy can im prove the 

ex pe r ience of  consum er s  and p rov ide r s of hea l th ca re se r v ices;

• an unde r s tand ing of  the ro les , dut i es and respons i b i l i t ies of  d i recto r s  un de r the 

Cor porat i ons Act ;

• leader sh ip sk i l l s ,  expe r ience mak ing dec i s ions  at the h ighes t leve l s ,  s t ra teg i c th ink in g 

and l ong -te r m p lann i ng ab i l i t ie s ;

• an unde r s tand ing of  cu r rent i s sues a f fect i ng the Aus t ra l ian h ea lth ca re indus t r y 

in  pa r t icu l a r,  and in gene ra l  a w ide r  unde r s tand ing of  inte r nat ion al m ed ica l and 

techno log ica l t rends i n heal th ca re p rov i s ion and consumpt ion;

• f lex ib le,  consu l tat ive and innovat ive ap proaches to com mun i cat ing and ach i ev in g 

co rpo rate g oa l s ;  and

• a pass ion fo r  and s t ron g comm itment to the success  of  th e act iv i t ies o f  the Com pany.

A s the Company has a re lat ive ly sma l l  Boa rd, the fu l l  Board act s as a nom inat ion comm it tee 

and rev iews Board membe r sh ip inc l ud i ng an as sessme nt of  necessa r y and des i rab l e sk i l l s  and 

com petenc ies ,  par t icu la r l y in  the contex t of board ren ewa l . 

3.3.   BOARD RESPONSIBIL IT IES 
The respons i b i l i t ies o f the Board inc lude:

1.  p rov i d ing s t rateg ic g u idance to the management team, inc l ud i ng cont r ib ut ing to the 

devel opment o f and app rov i ng the cor porate s t rategy;

2 .  rev iew ing and approv i ng bu s ines s  p lan s, the annua l  budget and f i nan ci a l  p l ans,  inc lud ing 

ava i lab le resou rces and m a jo r cap i ta l  expend itu re in i t iat ives ;

3 .  over see i ng an d mon i to r i ng:

a.  o rgan i sat iona l pe r fo r mance and the ach ievement of the G roup’s  s t rateg ic goa l s  an d 

ob ject ives;  and

b. p rog res s of ma jo r  cap i ta l  ex pend i tu res and other  s ign i f i cant co r porate p ro jects 

inc l ud i ng any acqui s i t ion s o r d i ves tments ;

4 .  mon i to r i ng f inanc ia l  per fo r mance inc lud ing approva l of the annua l and ha l f -yea r f i nanc ia l 

repor t s  and l ia i son w i th the Com pany’s aud i to r s ;

5 .  appoi ntm ent,  pe r fo r m ance as sessment and, i f  neces sa r y,  remova l  o f the Manag i ng D i recto r ;
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6 .  rat i f y i ng the appo intment and rem ova l of and cont r ibut ing to the pe r fo r man ce as sessment 

of m embe r s  of  the sen io r managem ent team;

7. ensu r in g the re a re ef fect ive management p rocesses  in p l ace and approv i ng ma jor 

co rpo rate i n i t iat i ves;

8 .  enhanci ng an d p rotect in g the reputat ion of the G roup; an d

9. ove r see ing th e ope rat ion of the G roup’s  sy s tems fo r  com p l iance and r i sk  manage ment an d 

repor t ing to sh a reho l der s .

3.4.   NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE
The Board h as adopted spec i f ic p r inc ip les  in  re lat ion to the i ndependence of Non - E xecut ive 

D i rector s .   These s tate that to be con s idered independent,  a D i recto r m ust be Non - E xecut ive 

and:

• not  be a su bstant ia l sha reh o lde r of the Company o r  an of f ice r of,  o r  other w i se 

associated d i rect l y w i th ,  a substant ia l  sha reho lde r  of  th e Com pany;

• w i th i n the l as t  th ree year s ,  not have been empl oyed in an execut i ve capacit y by the 

Company o r any oth er Group m emb er o r  been a D i recto r a f te r  ceas i ng to hol d any such 

em ployment; 

• w i th i n the l as t  th ree year s not have been a p r i nc ipa l of a mate r ia l  p rofes s iona l adv i so r 

o r  a m ater ia l  consu l tant to the Company o r any othe r G roup membe r,  o r an emp loyee 

mate r ia l l y a s soci ated w ith th e se r v ice p rov ided; 

• not  be a mater i a l  supp l ie r  o r  cus tome r of  the Company o r  any othe r G roup member,  o r 

an of f ice r  of  o r othe r w i se as soci ated d i rect l y o r  i nd i rect ly  w i th a mate r ia l  supp l ie r o r 

cus tome r ;

• have no mate r ia l  cont ractua l re lat ionsh ip w i th  the Company o r  a cont ro l l ed ent i t y othe r 

th an as a D i recto r ;

• not  have been on the Boa rd fo r  a pe r iod w h i ch cou ld,  o r  cou ld reasonably  be perce ived 

to,  m ate r ia l l y i nte r fe re w i th the D i recto r’s ab i l i t y to act in the best in teres t s  o f the 

Company;  an d 

• be f ree f rom any i nte res t  and any b us ines s  o r  oth er  re lat ion sh i p w h ich cou ld,  o r  cou ld 

reasonab ly be perce ived to,  m ater ia l l y  inter fe re w i th the D i recto r’s abi l i t y to act  i n the 

best inte res t s of the Company.

3.5.   TRADING POLICY
Di rector s a re sub ject to the leg i s l at i ve res t r ict ions on acq ui r in g o r  d i spos ing of secur i t ies  of the 

Company, i f  th ey a re in  posses s i on of in fo r mat ion w h ich i s  n ot gene ra l ly  ava i lab le,  and wh ich a 

reasonab le per son wou ld ex pect to h ave a mate r ia l  ef fect  on the p r ice of the secur i t ies  of  the 

Company i f  i t  we re gene ra l l y ava i lab le. 

The Company’s  secur i t i es t rad i ng po l icy res t r ict s  D i recto rs  and emp loyees f rom act ing on 

mate r ia l  i n fo r mat ion unt i l i t  has been re leased to the m ar ket and adequate t i me has been 

g i ven fo r th i s  to be ref lected in the secur i t y’s  p r ices . 

3.6.   CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)
The Ch ai r man i s  respons ib l e fo r lead i ng the Boa rd, ensu r ing D i rector s a re p roper l y b r ie fed i n a l l 

mat ter s  re levant to the i r ro le and respons ib i l i t ies ,  faci l i tat ing Boa rd d i scuss ions  and managing 

th e Boa rd’s  re l at i onsh ip w i th the Company’s sen io r execut ives . 

The CEO i s  respons i b le fo r  imp lement i ng Group s t rateg ies  and po l i c ies .  T he Board char te r 

spec i f ie s  that these a re separate ro les to be unde r taken by sepa rate peop le.
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3.7.   COMMITMENT
The number of meet ing s of  the Company’s  Boa rd of D i recto r s and of each Board comm it tee 

he ld du r ing the year ended 3 0 June 2018 ,  and the numbe r of m eet ing s at tended by each 

D i rector  i s  d i sc l osed i n the D i recto r s’  Repo r t. 

The fou r Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s meet du r ing the year,  in scheduled ses s ions  w i thout  the 

p resence of m an agem ent,  to d i scus s the operat ion of  th e Board and a range of  other mat ter s .  

Re l evant mat te r s  a r i s i ng f rom th i s  meet ing a re sha red w i th the fu l l  Boa rd as  app ropr i ate. 

I t  i s  the Com pany’s  p ract ice to a l low i t s  E xecut ive D i recto r s  to accept appointment s  out s ide the 

Company w i th p r io r  w r i t ten app rova l o f the Board.  

P r io r to appo intment o r be ing su bmit ted fo r  re - e lect ion,  each Non - E xecut ive D i recto r  i s  requ i red 

to spec i f ica l l y acknow ledge that they have and w i l l  cont i nue to m ake th e t ime ava i lab l e to 

d i scha rge the i r  respons i b i l i t i es to th e Company.  

3.8.   CORPORATE REPORTING 
The Manag ing D i recto r  and F inanc ia l  Cont ro l le r  h ave made the fo l low ing ce r t i f icat ions to the 

Boa rd:

• that the G roup’s  f in anc ia l  repor t s  a re com p lete and p resent a t r ue and fa i r  v iew, in  a l l 

mate r ia l  respect s ,  of  the f i nan c ia l  cond it ion an d operat iona l resu l t s  of the G roup and 

a re i n accordance w i th re levant account ing s tandards;  and

• th at the above s tatement i s founded on a sou nd s ys tem of r i s k management an d i nte rn al 

com pl iance and cont ro l  w h ich im p lem ents the po l ic ies adopted by the Board and 

th at the Group’s  r i sk  manag ement and inte r na l comp l iance and cont ro l  i s  ope rat i ng 

ef f ic ient l y and ef fect ive ly in a l l  mate r ia l  respect s .

3.9.   AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Boa rd has es tab l i shed an Aud it  Comm it tee wh ich acts  i n acco rdance w i th  i t s  cha r te r.  The 

Audi t  Com mit tee cons i s t s of th e fo l l ow i ng N on - E xecut i ve D i recto rs : 

M r  S L P ynt

M r G Smi th (Cha i r )

Due to the sma l l  number of  Board member s ,  the Board has ag reed to a l low the Aud it  Comm it tee 

to be made up of  t wo independent Non - E xecut i ve D i recto r s .  Deta i l s  of these D i recto r s’ 

qua l i f icat i ons  and at tendance at Aud it  Com mit tee m eet ings a re set out in the D i rector s’  Repor t.  

The Commit tee i s  cha i red by M r Sm i th .

The Aud it  Commit tee has approp r iate f inanc ia l  expe r t i se and a l l  mem be r s a re f i nanc ia l l y l i te rate 

and have an approp r i ate un de r s tan d i ng of th e i ndus t r ies  in  wh ich the G roup ope rates .  The 

Audi t  Comm it tee has autho r i t y,  w i th in th e scope of i t s  respons ib i l i t ies ,  to seek any i nfo r mat ion 

i t  requi res f rom any empl oyee o r  ex te r na l pa r t y. 

I t  i s  the Comm it tee’s  respons ib i l i t y  to ensu re th at an ef fect ive i nte r na l cont ro l  f ramewo r k ex i s t s 

w i th i n th e G roup, in c lud ing l ia i son w i th ex te r na l aud i to r s .    Th i s  inc l udes i nte r na l cont ro l s  fo r 

th e ef fect iveness and ef f ic iency of  s ig n i f icant bu s ines s  p roces ses ,  inc l ud ing the safeg uard ing 

of a s set s ,  the m aintenance of  p roper account i ng records and the re l iab i l i t y of f i nanc ia l 

in fo r mat ion.
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3.10.   REMUNERATION
The B oard does n ot have a separate remune rat ion comm it tee due to the smal l  n um be r of  Board 

me mbe r s .  Con sequent ly,  the i s sue of remunerat i on i s  under the cont ro l  of  the Boa rd w h ich has 

th e respons ib i l i t y of  rev iew in g and approv in g rem un erat ion of the Non - E xecut ive Cha i r man 

and othe r execut i ves  of  the G roup. Remune rat ion leve l s w i l l  be compet i t ive ly set to at t ract the 

most qua l i f i ed and exper ien ced D i recto r s and sen io r execut ives .  Whe re necessa r y the Board 

may obta in independent adv ice on the app rop r ia teness  of remune rat i on packages and obta in 

any neces sa r y sha reho lde r  approva l s .  The am ount of  rem un erat ion fo r a l l  D i recto r s i s  deta i l ed 

in  the D i recto r s’  Repo r t. 

Payment o f equ it y -based execut ive remunerat ion i s  m ade in accordance w i th th resho lds 

set i n p l ans approved by sha reh o lde rs .  The B oard ex pect s that the rem un erat ion s t r uctu re 

im pl emented w i l l  resu l t  i n the Company be ing abl e to at t ract and reta i n th e best execut i ves 

to r un th e G roup. I t  w i l l  a l so p rov ide execut ives w i th the necessa r y incent ives to wor k to g row 

long -te r m sha reho l der  va lue.  Deta i l s  of  the remune rat ion and pe r fo r mance of  execut ives a re 

inc l uded in the D i recto r s’  Repo r t.

3.11.   RISK
The Board does not have a separate r i sk  com mit tee due to the sma l l  num be r of  Board 

me mbe r s .   Th e Boa rd i s respons i b le fo r  ove r see i ng th e Group’s sy s tem s fo r  comp l i ance and 

r i s k m anagem ent.   The Board app roves the G roup’s  r i s k managem ent f ramewo r k ,  w h ich i s 

im pl emented by management,  and mon ito r s per iod ica l l y rev iew s the key r i sk s .

The G roup does not have an Inte r na l Aud i t  Fun ct ion.  The Board i s  of  the opi n ion that due to 

th e natu re and s i ze of  the Group, the funct ions  pe r fo r m ed by an i nte r na l aud i to r  a re be ing 

adequate ly  se r ved by the i ndependent ex te r na l aud i to r s .

3.12.   MONITORING OF THE BOARD’S PERFORMANCE
The Board has adopted a code of  conduct fo r D i rector s  in keep ing w i th the Company’s des i re 

to remai n a good cor po rate c i t i zen and appropr iate l y ba lance, p rotect and p rese r ve a l l 

s takeho lder s’ i nte res t s .

I n  o rder to ensu re that the Board cont inues to d ischarge i t s respons ib i l i t ie s  in  an appropr iate 

manne r,  the Board rev iews i t s  pe r fo r man ce and the Cha i r man rev i ews the pe r fo r mance of 

ind iv idua l D i recto r s  annua l l y.   These pe r fo r mance rev iew s a re gene ra l l y  conducted inte r n a l l y 

and the Board w i l l  seek an ex ter na l l y - fac i l i tated pe r fo r m ance rev iew i f  i t  cons i de r s  i t  appropr iate 

to do so.

3.13.   COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Boa rd a ims to ensu re that sha reho l de r s  a re in fo r med of a l l  i n fo r mat i on necessa r y to as ses s 

th e per fo r mance of  the economi c ent i t y.   Info r mat ion i s  com mun icated to sha reho lder s th rough:

• th e Annua l Repo r t  w h ich i s  d i s t r ibuted to a l l  sha reho l de r s ;

• th e Annua l Ge ne ra l M eet ing and othe r  meet ings ca l led to obta i n app rova l fo r  Boa rd 

act ion as appropr i ate;

• re l ease of  mater i a l  i n fo r m at ion to the A SX , i nc l ud i ng m ed ia and m ar ket u pdates;  and

• the Company’s  webs i te:  w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com.
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The Com pany Secreta r y i s  the pe rson respons ib le fo r com mun i cat ions  w i th the A SX .  Th i s ro le 

inc l udes resp ons ib i l i t y fo r en su r i ng compl iance w i th th e cont inuous d i sc lo su re requ i rements 

in  the A SX L i s t ing Ru les and ove rsee i ng and coo rd inat i ng d i scl osu re of i nfo r mat ion to the ASX . 

In fo r mat ion d i sc losed to the ASX i s  posted on th e Company’s  webs i te af te r i t  i s  d i sc losed to the 

A SX . When ana l ys t s  a re b r iefed on aspect s of the Group’s ope rat ions ,  the mater i a l s used i n the 

p resentat ion a re re leased to th e ASX and pos ted on the Company’s  webs i te. 

A l l  sha reh older s  a re ent i t led to receive a copy of  t he Com pany’s  annua l  and ha l f  yea r l y repor t s . 

I n  add it ion,  th e Company see k s  to p rov ide oppo r tu n i t ies fo r sh areholder s  to p a r t ic i pate th rough 

e l ect ron ic m ean s. In i t iat ives to fac i l i tate th i s inc l ude mak ing a l l  Com pany ann ounceme nts , 

med ia b r ief i ng s ,  deta i l s of  Com pany meet i ngs,  p res s re leases fo r the la s t  th ree year s and 

f i nanc i a l  repor t s  fo r  the las t  th ree year s  ava i lab le on the Com pany’s  web s i te.  Th e webs i te a l so 

inc l udes an opt i on fo r  sha reh o lde r s to reg i s te r the i r  ema i l  addres s fo r d i rect emai l  updates on 

Company m at te r s .  

3.14.     INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL ADVICE

Each D i recto r i s  ent i t l ed to seek indepen dent p rofes s i ona l adv ice at the ex pense of the 

Company i n ca r r y ing out the i r dut ies as  a D i recto r.   P r io r  to obta i n ing such adv ice, i f  a t the 

ex pen se of  the Group, the Chai r man w i l l  be adv i sed of the mat te r and an es t i mate of the cost.
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3.15.   ASX RECOMMENDATIONS

 Complied Note

1.1 A listed entity should disclose: (a) the respective roles and responsibilities of its Board and 

management; and (b) those matters expressly reserved to the Board and those delegated 

to senior management



1.2 A listed entity should: (a) undertake appropriate checks before appointing a person, or 

putting forward to security holders a candidate for election, as a director; and (b) provide 

security holders with all material information in its possession relevant to a decision on 

whether or not to elect or re-elect a director.



1.3 A listed entity should have a written agreement with each director and senior executive 

setting out the terms of their appointment.


1.4 The company secretary of a listed entity should be accountable directly to the Board, 

through the chair, on all matters to do with the proper functioning of the Board.


1.5 A listed entity should have a diversity policy which includes requirements for the Board or a 

relevant committee of the Board to set measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity 

and to assess annually both the objectives and the entity’s progress in achieving them; (b) 

disclose that policy or a summary of it; and disclose as at the end of each reporting period 

the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board or a relevant 

committee of the Board in accordance with the entity’s diversity policy and its progress 

towards achieving them, and either: the respective proportions of men and women on 

the board, in senior executive positions and across the whole organisation (including how 

the entity has deÀ ned “senior executive” for these purposes); or if the entity is a ‘relevant 

employer’ under the Workplace Gender Equality Act, the entity’s most recent ‘Gender 

Equality Indicators’, as deÀ ned in and published under that Act.



1.6 A listed entity should have and disclose the process for periodically evaluating the 

performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors; and (b) disclose, in 

relation to each reporting period, whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the 

reporting period in accordance with that process.



1.7 A listed entity should have and disclose the process for periodically evaluating the 

performance of its senior executives; and (b) disclose, in relation to each reporting period, 

whether a performance evaluation was undertaken in the reporting period in accordance 

with that process.



2.1 The board of a listed entity should: (a) have a nomination committee which: (1) has at least 

three members, a majority of whom are independent directors; and  (2) is chaired by an 

independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the members of 

the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the 

committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members at 

those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a nomination committee, disclose that fact and the 

processes it employs to address board succession issues and to ensure that the board has 

the appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience, independence and diversity to 

enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

-- 1

2.2 A listed entity should have and disclose a board skills matrix setting out the mix of skills and 

diversity that the board currently has or is looking to achieve in its membership.


2.3 A listed entity should disclose: (a) the names of the directors considered by the board to be 

independent directors; (b) if a director has an interest, position, association or relationship of 

the type described in Box 2.3 but the board is of the opinion that it does not compromise the 

independence of the director, the nature of the interest, position, association or relationship 

in question and an explanation of why the board is of that opinion; and (c) the length of 

service of each director.



2.4 A majority of the Board of a listed entity should be independent Directors 
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 Complied Note

2.5 The Chair of the Board of a listed entity should be an independent director and, in 

particular, should not be the same person as the CEO of the entity.


2.6 A listed entity should have a program for inducting new directors and provide appropriate 

professional development opportunities for directors to develop and maintain the skills and 

knowledge needed to perform their role as directors effectively.



3.1 A listed entity should: (a) have a code of conduct for its directors, senior executives and 

employees; and (b) disclose that code or a summary of it.


4.1 The Board of a listed entity should: (a) have an Audit Committee which:  (1) has at least 

three members, all of whom are non-executive directors and a majority of whom are 

independent directors; and (2) is chaired by an independent director, who is not the chair 

of the board, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the relevant qualiÀ cations 

and experience of the members of the committee; and (5) in relation to each reporting 

period, the number of times the committee met throughout the period and the individual 

attendances of the members at those meetings; or (b) if it does not have an audit 

committee, disclose that fact and the processes it employs that independently verify 

and safeguard the integrity of its corporate reporting, including the processes for the 

appointment and removal of the external auditor and the rotation of the audit engagement 

partner.

 2

4.2 The board of a listed entity should, before it approves the entity’s À nancial statements 

for a À nancial period, receive from its CEO and CFO a declaration that, in their opinion, 

the À nancial records of the entity have been properly maintained and that the À nancial 

statements comply with the appropriate accounting standards and give a true and fair 

view of the À nancial position and performance of the entity and that the opinion has been 

formed on the basis of a sound system of risk management and internal control which is 

operating effectively.



4.3 A listed entity that has an AGM should ensure that its external auditor attends its AGM and is 

available to answer questions from security holders relevant to the audit.


5.1 A listed entity should: (a) have a written policy for complying with its continuous disclosure 

obligations under the Listing Rules; and (b) disclose that policy or a summary of it.


6.1 A listed entity should provide information about itself and its governance to investors via its 

website.


6.2 A listed entity should design and implement an investor relations program to facilitate 

effective two-way communication with investors.


6.3 A listed entity should disclose the policies and processes it has in place to facilitate and 

encourage participation at meetings of security holders.


6.4 A listed entity should give security holders the option to receive communications from, and 

send communications to, the entity and its security registry electronically.


7.1 The board of a listed entity should: (a) have a committee or committees to oversee risk, 

each of which: (1) has at least three members, a majority of whom are independent 

directors; and (2) is chaired by an independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of 

the committee; (4) the members of the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting 

period, the number of times the committee met throughout the period and the individual 

attendances of the members at those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a risk committee 

or committees that satisfy (a) above, disclose that fact and the processes it employs for 

overseeing the entity’s risk management framework.

__ 3

7.2 The Board or a committee of the Board should: (a) review the entity’s risk management 

framework at least annually to satisfy itself that it continues to be sound; and (b) disclose, in 

relation to each reporting period, whether such a review has taken place.  


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 Complied Note

7.3 A listed entity should disclose: (a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is 

structured and what role it performs; or (b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that 

fact and the processes it employs for evaluating and continually improving the effectiveness 

of its risk management and internal control processes.

__ 4

7.4 A listed entity should disclose whether it has any material exposure to economic, 

environmental and social sustainability risks and, if it does, how it manages or intends to 

manage those risks.



8.1 The Board of a listed entity should : (a) have a remuneration committee which: (1) has at 

least three members, a majority of whom are independent directors; and (2) is chaired by 

an independent director, and disclose: (3) the charter of the committee; (4) the members 

of the committee; and (5) as at the end of each reporting period, the number of times the 

committee met throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members 

at those meetings; or (b) if it does not have a remuneration committee, disclose that fact 

and the processes it employs for setting the level and composition of remuneration for 

directors and senior executives and ensuring that such remuneration is appropriate and not 

excessive.

-- 5

8.2 A listed entity should separately disclose its policies and practices regarding the 

remuneration of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and 

other senior executives.



8.3 A listed entity which has an equity-based remuneration scheme should: (a) have a policy 

on whether participants are permitted to enter into transactions (whether through the use of 

derivatives or otherwise) which limit the economic risk of participating in the scheme; and 

(b) disclose that policy or a summary of it.



No tes :

Note 1:  The Boa rd of  D i recto r s of the Company does not have a Nom inat ion Comm it tee. The Board 

i s  of  the op in ion that due to the natu re and s i ze of  the Company, the funct ion s per fo r med by a 

Nom inat ion Com mit tee can be adeq uate ly  hand led by the fu l l  Boa rd. 

Note 2:  Th e Company has th ree Non - E xecut ive D i recto r s ,  of  w hom t wo com pr i se the Aud it  Comm it tee. 

The B oard i s  of the op in ion that due to the natu re and s i ze of the Company, th i s  funct ion can be 

adequate ly  handl ed w ith le ss  th an the th ree member s recomm ended un de r ASX gu ide l i nes .

Note 3:  The Com pany does not have a R i s k Comm it tee.  The Board i s  of  th e op in i on that due to the 

natu re and s i ze of  the Company, the funct ions per fo r med by a R i sk  Comm it tee can be adequate ly 

hand led by the fu l l  Boa rd.

Note 4:  The Company does not have an I nte r na l Aud i t  Funct ion due to the natu re and s i ze of the 

Company, 

Note 5:  The Comp any does not have a Remune rat ion Comm it tee. The Boa rd i s of th e op in ion that 

due to the natu re and s i ze of  the Com pany, the funct ions per fo r m ed by a Remu ne rat ion Comm it tee 

can be adeq uate ly h and led by the fu l l  Boa rd.
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4.   ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Th i s  G lobal  Hea l th L i m i ted conso l idated ent i t y (‘G roup’) f inanc ia l  repor t  i s  p resented in the 

Aust ra l ian cu r rency. 

G loba l  Hea l th L i m i ted i s  a company l i m i ted by sha res ,  inco r po rated and dom ic i led in Aust ra l ia . 

The Company’s reg i s te red of f ice an d p r in c ipa l p lace of bus ines s i s : 

Gl obal  Hea l t h L i m i te d
Leve l 2 ,  607 Bou rke St reet

Melbou r ne, Vi cto r ia 3 0 0 0

Aus t ra l ia .

A descr ipt ion of  th e natu re of the G roup’s operat ions and i t s p r i nc ipa l act iv i t ies i s  i nc l uded in 

th e rev iew of ope rat ion s  and act iv i t ies i n the D i recto r s’  Repor t  w h ich a re par t  of  th i s  f i nanc ia l 

repor t.

The f inancia l  repo r t  was autho r i sed fo r i s sue by th e D i recto r s on 27 Septembe r 2018 . 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 0 JUNE 2018

Note
Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

Revenue from the sale of licenses and maintenance 

contracts 
2 3,880,443 3,415,775

   Revenue from professional services 2 1,408,076 1,191,795

   Other income 2 682,352 692,611

   Settlement on Chiron Software Litigation 2 - 5,000,000

Total revenue from continuing operations 5,970,871 10,300,181

   Salaries and related costs 3 (4,172,422) (4,954,609)

   Direct external costs 3 (207,310) (263,754)

   General and administration costs 3 (1,729,593) (1,731,893)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation

(138,454) 3,349,925

   Finance costs 3 (110,060) (146,500)

   Depreciation 3 (63,624) (87,931)

   Amortisation 3,9 (132,778) (266,021)

   Impairment 3,9 - (917,381)

   Non-operating foreign exchange gains/(losses) (166) (73)

(Loss)/proÀ t before income tax (445,082) 1,932,019

   Income tax beneÀ t/(expense) 4 23,848 (203,974)

Net (loss)/proÀ t for the year (after tax) (421,234) 1,728,045

Other comprehensive income

       Exchange differences on translating foreign operations - (6,259)

Total comprehensive (loss)/proÀ t for the year (421,234) 1,721,786 

Net (loss)/proÀ t for the year attributable to:

   Owners of the parent 17 (421,234) 1,728,369 

   Non-controlling interest 18 - (324)

(421,234) 1,728,045

Total comprehensive (loss)/proÀ t attributable to:

   Owners of the parent (421,234) 1,722,118

   Non-controlling interest - (332)

(421,234) 1,721,786 

Earnings per share

Earnings per share – after tax

   Basic earnings after tax per share (cents per share) 25 (1.259) 5.212

   Diluted earnings per share after tax (cents per share) 25 (1.183) 4.896

Earnings per share – before tax

   Basic earnings before tax per share (cents per share) 25 (1.330) 5.827

   Diluted earnings per share before tax (cents per share) 25 (1.250) 5.474

The above conso l i dated s tatem ent of p rof i t  o r  los s  and other  comprehen s ive income shou ld be 

read in con jun ct ion w i th the accompany i ng notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF F INANCIAL POSIT ION AS AT 3 0 JUNE 2 018

 Note

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Current Assets

  Cash and cash equivalents  5 1,157,536 2,543,412

  Trade and Other Receivables 6 2,262,567 1,821,098

  Other Assets 7 187,752 185,969

  Current tax asset 4 805,136 481,842

Total Current Assets 4,412,991 5,032,321

Non-Current Assets

  Trade and other receivables 6 - 140,911

  Property, plant and equipment 8 87,694 150,738

  Intangibles 9 6,533,971 4,817,920

  Deferred tax asset 10 517,819 596,599

Total Non-Current Assets 7,139,484 5,706,168

Total Assets 11,552,475 10,738,489

Current Liabilities

  Trade and other payables 11 1,312,032 1,079,282

  Interest bearing liabilities 12 515,657 389,880

  Provisions – Employee BeneÀ ts 13 574,201 506,469

  Unearned income 14 1,427,676 1,462,960

Total Current Liabilities 3,829,566 3,438,591

Non-Current Liabilities

  Interest bearing liabilities 12 1,170,513 1,078,880

  Provisions – Employee BeneÀ ts 13 17,121 30,764

  Unearned income 14 - 46,128

  Deferred tax liability 10 1,984,923 1,282,415

Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,172,557 2,438,187

Total Liabilities 7,002,123 5,876,778

Net Assets 4,550,352 4,861,711

Equity

  Contributed equity 15 20,898,742 20,836,242

  Reserves 16 152,454 105,079

  Accumulated losses 17 (16,500,920) (16,079,686)

Total Parent Entity Interest 4,550,276 4,861,635

  Non-controlling interest 18 76 76

Total Equity 4,550,352 4,861,711

The above conso l i dated s tatement  of  f in ancia l pos i t ion shou ld be read in  con junct ion w i th the 

accom pany ing notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE S IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 
2018

Consolidated Group

Issued 

capital 

ordinary

Option 

reserve

Currency 

translation 

reserve

Retained 

earnings

Total 

attributable 

to owners of 

the parent

Non-

Controlling 

interest

Total 

equity

Balance 1 July 2017 20,836,242 80,845 24,234 (16,079,686) 4,861,635 76 4,861,711

Issue of share capital 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 62,500

Options revaluation - 47,375 - - 47,375 - 47,375

Transactions with owners 62,500 47,375 - - 109,875 - 109,875

ProÀ t/(loss) for the period - - - (421,234) (421,234) - (421,234)

Other comprehensive 

income:
- - - - - - -

Exchange difference 

on translation of foreign 

operations

- - - - - - -

Total comprehensive proÀ t/

(loss) for the period
- - - (421,234) (421,234) - (421,234)

Balance 30 June 2018 20,898,742 128,220 24,234 (16,500,920) 4,550,276 76 4,550,352

Balance 1 July 2016 20,728,742 29,978 30,485 (17,144,355) 3,644,850 408 3,645,258

Issue of share capital 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 62,500

Exercise of options 45,000 - - - 45,000 - 45,000

Share based payment - 50,867 - - 50,867 - 50,867

Transactions with owners 107,500 50,867 - - 158,367 - 158,367

ProÀ t/(loss) for the period - - - 1,728,369 1,728,369 (324) 1,728,045

Payment of dividends - - - (663,700) (663,700) - (663,700)

Other comprehensive 

income:

Exchange difference 

on translation of foreign 

operations

- - (6,251) - (6,251) (8) (6,259)

Total comprehensive proÀ t/

(loss) for the period
- - (6,251) 1,064,669 1,058,418 (332) 1,058,086

Balance 30 June 2017 20,836,242 80,845 24,234 (16,079,686) 4,861,635 76 4,861,711

The above conso l idated s tatem ent of chang es i n equ it y shou ld be read in con jun ct ion w i th the 

accom pany ing notes.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 0 JUNE 2018

Note

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

   Receipts from customers 5,080,045 4,722,667

   Cash received from the settlement of Chiron Software 

litigation
- 5,000,000

   Receipts from Research and Development Grants 491,888 423,002

   Payments to suppliers and employees (5,232,719) (6,491,096)

   Interest received 16,969 43,206

   Interest and À nance costs paid (110,060) (146,500)

Net cash inÁ ow from operating activities 27 246,123 3,551,279

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

   Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - -

   Purchase of property, plant and equipment (580) (66,056)

   Purchase of intangibles (1,848,829) (1,154,170)

Net cash outÁ ow from investing activities (1,849,409) (1,220,226)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

   Proceeds from borrowings 602,807 -

   Repayment of borrowings (385,397) (272,969)

   Payment of dividends - (663,700)

Net cash inÁ ow/(outÁ ow) from À nancing activities 217,410 (936,669)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents held (1,385,876) 1,394,384

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the À nancial 

year 2,543,412 1,149,028

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

the À nancial year
5

1,157,536 2,543,412

  
The above conso l idated s tatement of  cash f l ow s shou ld be read i n con junct ion w i th  the 

accom pany ing notes.
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The con sol idated f in ancia l  s tatements and notes rep resent  those of G loba l Heal th Ltd and 

Cont ro l l ed Ent i t ies  (the “conso l idated g roup” o r  “g roup”).G loba l Hea lth L im i ted i s a fo r- p rof i t 

l i s ted company l im i ted by sha res and domic i led in Aust ra l i a . 

 

The con sol idated f in ancia l  s tatements a re p resented i n Aus t ra l ian do l l a r s w h ich i s  the pa rent 

ent i t y’s  fun ct iona l  and p resentat ion cu r rency. The sepa rate f i nanc ia l  s tatements  and n otes of 

th e parent ent i t y,  G loba l  Hea l th L im i ted, h ave not been presented w i th in th i s  f in ancia l  repor t 

a s pe r m i t ted by amendments  made to the Cor p orat i ons Act 2 0 01.  The pa rent ent i t y summ ar y 

i s  i nc luded in N ote 3 0.

 

The f inancia l  s tatements we re autho r i sed fo r i s sue by the Board of  D i rector s on 27 September 

2 018

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The gene ra l  pu r pose f in anc ia l  s tatements have been p repa red in acco rdance w i th the 

Cor porat i ons Act 2 0 01,  Aus t ra l ian Account i ng Stan da rds and Inte r p retat i ons of the Aus t ra l ian 

Account ing Standards Boa rd and Inte r nat iona l  F inancia l Repo r t ing Standards as i s sued by 

th e In te r nat iona l Account i ng Standards Boa rd. The G roup i s  a fo r -p rof i t  ent i t y  fo r  f i nanc i a l 

repor t ing pu r poses under Aust ra l ian Account i ng Stan da rds .  Mate r ia l  account in g po l ic ies 

adopted in the p reparat ion of  th ese f inanc ia l  s tatements  a re p resented be low and have been 

cons i s tent l y appl ied un l es s s tated othe r w ise.

E xcept fo r cash f low i nfo r m at i on,  the f inancia l s tatem ents have been p repared on an accr ual s 

bas i s and a re based on h i s to r ica l  cost s ,  mod if ied, w he re app l icab le,  by the m easu rem ent at 

fa i r va lue of se l ected non - cu r rent  asset s ,  f inanc ia l  a s set s and f i nan ci a l  l iab i l i t i es .

a. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Grou p f inancia l  s tatements con so l idate those of th e Pa rent Company and a l l  of  i t s 

subs id ia r i es  a s of 3 0 J une 2 018 .   The Pa rent cont ro l s  a subs i d ia r y  i f  i t  i s  ex posed, o r  has r ig hts , 

to va r iab le retu r ns f rom i t s  i nvo lvem ent w i th the subs i d ia r y  and has the ab i l i t y  to a f fect those 

retu r n s th rough i t s power over the subs id ia r y.

A l i s t  of  cont ro l led ent i t ies  i s  conta ined in Note 19 to the f i nan c ia l  s tatements .  A l l  cont ro l l ed 

ent i t ies h ave a J une f inanc ia l  yea r en d. A s at repo r t ing date, the asset s and l iab i l i t ie s of  a l l 

cont ro l l ed ent i t ies have been inco r po rated i nto the con so l idated f inanc ia l  s tatem ents as  we l l 

a s the i r  resu l t s fo r  the year then ended. Whe re cont ro l l ed ent i t ies have ente red ( le f t)  the Group 

dur in g the year,  the i r  ope rat ing resu l t s  have been inc luded (exc l uded) f rom th e date cont ro l 

was obta i ned (ceased).  A l l  i nte r- company ba lances and t ransact ions b et ween ent i t ie s i n the 

G roup, i nc lud i ng any un rea l i sed prof i t s  o r lo s ses ,  have been e l im inated on conso l idat ion. 

Account ing po l ic ies of subs id ia r ies  have been changed w he re necessa r y to ensu re cons i s tency 

w i th  those po l ic ies app l ied by the pa rent ent i t y.

Non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t s ,  be ing that po r t ion of the p rof i t  o r lo s s and n et as set s of  subs i d ia r ies 

at t r ibutab le to equ i t y inte res t s h e ld by per sons out s ide th e Group, a re shown sepa rate ly w i th in 

th e equ it y sect ion of  the conso l idated s tatement of f inan ci a l pos i t ion and in the conso l idated 

s tatement o f p rof i t  o r  los s .

Bus i ness  comb i nat ions occur  w he re an acq ui re r obta ins cont ro l  ove r  on e o r  more bus inesses 

and resu l t s  in  the conso l idat ion of  i t s  a sset s and l iab i l i t i es .  A bus i nes s com b in at i on i s  accounted 

fo r by app ly ing the acqui s i t ion m eth od, un les s  i t  i s  a comb inat ion invo lv i ng ent i t ies  o r  bu s i nesses 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
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under com mon cont ro l .  The acqu i s i t i on method requ i res that fo r  each bus i ness  comb inat ion 

one of  the com bin ing ent i t ies m us t be ident i f ied as the acq u i re r  ( i .e. pa rent ent i t y).  The b us ines s 

com binat i on w i l l  be accounted fo r  a s at  the acqu i s i t ion date, w h ich i s  the date that cont ro l 

ove r  the acqui ree i s obta ined by the parent ent i t y.  At th i s  date,  the parent sha l l  recogn i se, 

in  the conso l idated account s ,  and subject to ce r ta in l i m i ted except ions,  the fa i r  va l ue of  the 

ident i f i ab le as sets  acqu i red and l iab i l i t ie s a ssumed. I n add it ion,  cont i ngent l iab i l i t i es  of  the 

acqui ree w i l l  be recogn i sed w he re a p resent ob l igat ion has been incu r red and i t s fa i r  va lue 

can be re l iab ly measu red.

The acqu i s i t ion may resu l t  i n the recogn i t ion of goodw i l l .  The m eth od adopted fo r  the 

measu rement of goodw i l l  w i l l  i mpact  on the measu rement of any non - cont ro l l i n g in teres t  to  be 

recogn i sed in  th e acq u i ree w here les s  than 10 0 % owne r sh ip i s  he ld in  the acq u i ree.

The acqui s i t ion date fa i r  va lue of  the cons ide rat ion t rans fe r red fo r  a bus ines s comb inat ion 

p lus the acqui s i t ion date fa i r  va lue of any p rev ious ly - he l d equ it y inte res t  sha l l  fo r m the cost of 

th e i nves tment.  Cons ide rat ion may com p r i se the sum of th e as set s t ran s fe r red by th e acqui re r, 

l i ab i l i t ies  in cu r red by the acq u i re r  to th e fo r me r owne r s of  the acqu i ree and the equ i t y i nte res t s 

i s sued by the acqu i re r.

Fa i r  va lue up l i f t s  in the va lue of  p re - ex i s t ing equ i t y ho ld ings a re taken to the s tatement o f p rof i t 

o r  los s .  Whe re chan ges in the va l ue of such eq ui t y  ho l d i ng s had been p rev i ous ly recogn i sed in 

othe r comprehens ive incom e, such am ou nt s a re recyc l ed to p rof i t  o r los s .

I nc l uded in the measu rement of  cons i de rat i on t rans fer red i s any asset o r  l i ab i l i t y  resu l t ing 

f rom a cont ingent cons iderat ion a r rangement.  Any ob l igat ion in cu r red re l at i ng to cont i ngent 

cons ide rat ion i s  c las s i f ied as e i ther  a f in anc ia l  l iab i l i t y  o r  equ i t y i ns t r um ent,  depend ing upon the 

natu re of  th e a r rangement.  R ight s to re funds o r con s i de rat ion p rev ious ly pa id a re recogn i sed 

as a recei vab le. Subsequent to in i t ia l  recogn i t ion,  cont ingent cons i de rat i on c la s s i f ied as equ i t y 

i s  not re - measu red and i t s  subsequent set t l ement  i s  accounted fo r  w i th i n equ i t y.  Cont i ngent 

cons ide rat ion c la s s i f i ed as  an as set o r a l iab i l i t y  i s  re - measu red each repor t i ng pe r iod to 

fa i r va l ue th rough the s tatem ent of  p rof i t  o r  l os s  and other  comp rehen s ive i ncom e un less the 

chan ge i n va l ue can be ident i f ied as  ex i s t ing at acq u i s i t ion date. 

A l l  t ran sact ion cost s in cu r red in  re l at ion to the bus i nes s comb i nat ion a re expensed to the 

s tatement o f p rof i t  o r  los s  an d oth er  compreh ens ive incom e. 

b. IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each repor t i ng date, the Group rev iews the ca r r y i ng va lues of i t s  tang ib le and intang ib le 

asset s to dete r m i ne w hether  the re i s  any in d icat ion that those asset s have been i mpa i red. I f 

such an ind i cat ion ex i s t s ,  th e recoverabl e amount  of  the asset,  b e ing the h ighe r of  th e asset’s 

fa i r va lue l es s  cos t s  to se l l  and val ue i n use,  i s  com pared to the asset’s  ca r r y in g va lue. In 

a ssess ing va lue in use,  the es t imated futu re cash f lows a re d i scounted to the i r  p resent  va lue 

us i ng a p re -tax d i scount rate that ref lect s cu r rent  mar ket  a sses sments  of  th e t i me va lue of 

money and the r i sk s  speci f ic to th e as set fo r  wh ich the es t imates of fu tu re cash f l ow s h ave not 

been ad jus ted.

Any excess o f the as set’s  ca r r y ing va lue ove r i t s  recove rab le amount i s ex pensed to the 

s tatement o f p rof i t  o r  los s  an d oth er  compreh ens ive incom e. 

c.  REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue i s  measu red at the fa i r va l ue of the cons ide rat ion recei ved o r  receivable.  Revenue i s 

recogn i sed fo r  th e ma jo r  bus ines s act i v i t ie s a s fo l l ow s:
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SALES REVENUE
Sal es revenue compr i ses revenue ear ned (net of retu r ns , d i scount and a l l owances) f rom the 

p rov i s ion of  p roduct s o r  se r v ices to ent i t ies  out s ide the conso l idated ent i t y.   Sa les  revenue i s 

catego r i sed an d recog n i sed as fo l lows:

In i t ia l  L icence Fees and Upgrade Fees 

In i t ia l  L icence Fees and Upgrade Fees a re b rought to account on the ea r l ie r o f :

1.  the date of s ign i ng the cont ract o r ag reement o r ;

2 .  the date s t ipu l ated i n the executed cont ract o r ag reem ent.  

The ent i t y i s  ab le to recogn i se th e revenue w hen the s ig n i f i cant r i s k s of ow ner sh ip a re t rans fe r red 

f rom the ent i t y to the buyer and one of the above cond i t ions  i s  m et.

Ma intenance Fees

Mai ntenance fe es a re a non - re fundab le defe r red revenue s t ream. C l ients  subscr ibe to the i r 

l i cences in advance – rang ing f rom month ly,  q uar te r l y,  ha l f -year ly to annua l paym ents .  T hey 

a re p ropor t i ona l l y accr ued in a r rea r s ,  at the end of  each month and recogn i sed as revenue 

ove r  the l icence per iod. These ent i t le the custome r to a usage l i cence, h e lp desk te l ephone 

suppor t and r ight s to ex tended wa r rant y an d p roduct enhan cem ents .

Pro fess iona l Se r v ices

Profes s iona l se r v ices a re b rought to accou nt on the i s sue of invoice on com plet i on of  wor k that 

may be per fo r med on a t ime and mate r ia l s  o r  a p ro ject m i le s ton e bas i s .  Th i s  i nc ludes wor k done 

in the hea lth and non - hea l th segments .

GRANTS
G rant mon ies a re not recogn i sed unt i l  th ere i s reasonab le as su rance that th e conso l idated 

ent i t y w i l l  comp ly w i th the cond it ion s at tach i ng to i t ,  and that the g rant w i l l  be rece ived.  

Rece ipt of a g rant  does n ot of i t se l f  p rov ide conclus ive ev idence that the cond i t ions at tach ing 

to the g rant have been o r w i l l  be fu l f i l l ed.

INTEREST INCOME
I nte res t  revenue i s  recogn ised us ing the ef fect ive inte res t  method.

ASSET SALE S
The net p rof i t  o r  los s  on sa les  o f f i xed as set s in c lud ing p lant and equ ipm ent i s i nc l uded as 

revenue of the conso l i dated e nt i t y.   The p rof i t  o r  l os s  on d i sposa l of as sets  i s  b rought to accou nt 

at the date an uncond i t ion al cont ract of sa le i s s ign ed. 

 

d. GOODS AND SERVICES TAX

Revenues ,  ex pen ses and as sets  a re recogn i sed net of the amount of  Goods and Se r v ices Tax 

(GST),  except w he re the amount of GS T i ncu r red i s not recove rab l e f rom the Aus t ra l ian Taxat ion 

Of f i ce (ATO).  In  th ese c i rcum stan ces the GS T i s  recog n i sed as par t  o f th e cos t of  acq u i s i t i on of 

th e as set o r  as  pa r t  of  an i te m of the ex pense. 

Rece ivab les  and payabl es a re s tated w i th the amount of  GST  inc luded. Th e n et amount of 

GST recove rab le f rom, o r payab le to, th e ATO i s  inc luded as a cu r rent a sset o r l i ab i l i t y i n the 

conso l idated s tatement o f f inancia l  pos i t ion .  Cash f l ow s a re inc l uded in the s tatem ent of  cash 

f low s on a g ros s bas i s .  The GS T components  o f cash f l ow s a r i s ing f rom invest ing and f inancing 

act iv i t ies  w h i ch a re recove rab le f rom, o r  payab le to,  the ATO are c la ss i f ied as operat in g cash 

f low.
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e.  INCOME TAX

The income tax ex pense o r  reven ue fo r  the pe r iod i s  the tax payab l e on the cu r rent pe r iod’s 

taxab le income based on the n at i ona l income tax rate fo r  each ju r i sd ict ion ad jus ted by chan ges 

in  defe r red tax assets  and l iab i l i t ies  at t r i butab le to te mpo ra r y d i f fe rences b et ween th e tax 

bases of  as set s  and l iab i l i t ies and the i r  ca r r y ing va l ues in the f i nanc ia l  s tatements , an d to 

unused tax los ses .   Defe r red tax asset s and l i ab i l i t ies  a re recogn i sed fo r tempo rar y d i f fe rences 

at the tax rates ex pected to app ly  when th e as set s  a re recove red o r l iab i l i t ies  a re set t led, 

based on those tax rates  w h ich are subs tant ia l l y  enacted fo r  each ju r i sd ict i on.   The re levant tax 

rates  a re app l ied to the cum u lat ive amount s  of  deduct ib le and taxab le tempora r y d i f fe rences 

a r i s ing f rom the i n i t ia l  recogn it ion of an as set o r  a l iab i l i t y.   N o defe r red tax asset o r l iab i l i t y  i s 

recogn i sed in re lat ion to th ese tempora r y d i f fe rences i f  they a rose in  a t ransact ion,  othe r  than 

a bus iness com b in at i on,  th at at the t im e of the t ransact ion d id not af fect e i ther  account ing 

p rof i t  o r taxable p rof i t  o r l os s .

Defe r red tax as set s  a re recogn i sed fo r deduct i b le tem porar y d i f fe rences and unused tax l osses 

on ly  i f  i t  i s  p robab le that futu re taxab le amount s w i l l  be ava i lab le to ut i l i se those tem po ra r y 

d i f fe rences and los ses .

Cu r rent an d defe r red tax ba l ances at t r ibutab le to amount s d i rect l y in equi t y  a re a l so recogn i sed 

d i rect l y in equ it y.

 

TAX CONSOLIDATION LEGISL ATION 
The Company and i t s  w ho l l y - owned Aus t ra l ian ent i t ies  have i mp lemented the tax conso l idat ion 

leg i s lat ion.  These we re fo r m al l y adopted on l odg em ent of the 2 0 0 4 i ncom e ta x retu r ns .

The Company i s  respon s ib le fo r recogn i s i ng th e defe r red tax asset s  re lat in g to tax los ses fo r  the 

Tax Con so l idated G rou p.  The Tax Conso l idated G rou p has entered into a tax- sh ar i ng ag reement 

w hereby each company in  the Group cont r ibutes  to th e i ncome tax payab l e i n p ropor t ion to 

th e i r cont r ibut ion to the net p rof i t  befo re tax of  the Tax Conso l idated Group.

f .  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

I ntang i b le asset s cons i s t  of the fo l low ing:

DEVELOPED PRODUCTS
Deve loped product s a re in i t ia l l y  recogn i sed at cos t and a re subsequent ly  measu red at  cos t 

les s accum ulated amo r t i sat i on and accumu lated impa i r ment los ses . Developed p rodu cts  have 

a f in i te l i fe and a re amor t i sed on a sy s temat ic bas i s  match ed to the futu re econom ic benef i t s 

ove r  th e usefu l  l i fe of  the p ro ject w h ich i s 10 year s .

PRODUC TS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
E xpend i tu re du r i ng the research phase of  a p ro ject i s  recogn i sed as an ex pense w hen i ncu r red. 

Deve lopment  cos t s  a re cap ita l i sed on ly w hen techn ica l feas ib i l i t y s tud ies ident i f y that the 

p ro ject w i l l  de l i ve r  fu tu re economic benef i t s  and th ese benef i t s  can be measu red re l iab ly.

The ex pen di tu re cap i ta l i sed inc lu des the cos t of  mate r ia l s ,  d i rect labour  and ove r head cost s 

th at a re d i rect l y at t r ibutable to p repa r ing the as set fo r  i t s  i ntended use. Othe r  devel opment 

ex pend i tu re i s recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  lo s s a s incu r red. Th e ca r r y in g va l ue of  p roduct s un de r 

devel opment a re rev i ewed ann ua l ly  w he n th e asset i s  not yet ava i l ab le fo r  u se, o r w h en events 

o r  c i rcumstances in d icate that the ca r r y ing va lue may be im pa i red. On comm e rc ia l i sat ion of 

th ese p roduct s w h ich i s  rep resented by w he n the as set i s  ava i lab le fo r  use,  the cap ita l i sed cost s 

re l at i ng to the p ro ject i s  t ran s fe r red to Devel oped products
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g. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST AND VALUATION
P lant and equ i pment,  leaseh o l d i mprovements  an d fu r n i tu re and f i t t ing s a re ca r r i ed at cost.

A sset a re ca r r ied at cost les s any accumulated dep reci at ion and any im pa i r ment los ses .  Cost s 

inc l ude pu rchase p r ice, othe r d i rect l y at t r ib utab le cost s  and th e i n i t ia l  e s t imate of th e cos t s of 

d i smant l ing and res to r i ng the as set,  whe re app l i cab le.

DEPRECIATION AND A MORTISAT ION
P lant and equ ipment,  leaseho ld im p rovem ents and fu r n i tu re and f i t t in gs of the conso l idated 

ent i t y a re deprec iated/amo r t i sed on a d i m in ish i ng va l ue bas i s .  Rates of  deprec iat ion/

amor t i sat ion a re ca lcu lated to a l l ocate the cost,  les s  es t imated res idua l va l ue at the end of 

th e usefu l l i ves of the asset s .

The depreci at ion/am or t i sat ion rates  used fo r  each c las s of dep reciab l e as sets  a re:

Class of Asset Diminishing Value (%)

Leasehold Improvements 29 - 37

Plant and Equipment 13 - 67

The as set s’  res idua l  va lues and usefu l  l i ves a re rev iewed, and ad jus ted i f  appropr i ate,  at the 

en d of  each repor t ing pe r iod. 

Ga ins and los ses on d i sposa l s  a re dete r mi ned by compa r in g p roceeds w i th  the ca r r y in g amount. 

These ga ins  and los ses  a re inc l uded in the conso l i dated s tatement o f p rof i t  o r  l os s  and othe r 

com prehens i ve in come.

h. FOREIGN CURRENCY

FUNC TIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
I tems inc luded i n the f i nan ci a l  s tate ments of  each of  the G roup’s  ent i t ies a re measu red us ing 

th e cu r rency of the p r ima r y econom ic env i ronm ent in  w h ich the ent i t y ope rates  (‘ the funct iona l 

cu r rency’).  Th e conso l idated f inan c ia l  s tatem ents a re p resented i n Aus t ra l ian do l la r s ,  w h ich i s 

G loba l  Hea l th  L im ited’s funct ion al and p resentat ion cu r rency. 

TRANSLATION OF CONTROLLED FORE IGN ENTIT I ES 
The resu l t s  and f inanc ia l  pos i t ion of a l l  the G roup ent i t ies that have a funct iona l cu r rency 

d i f fe rent f rom the G roup’s p rese ntat ion cu r rency a re t ran s lated into the p resentat i on cu r rency 

as fo l l ow s:

• asset s and l iab i l i t ies  a re t ran s lated at exch ange rates p reva i l i ng at the end of  the 

repor t ing per iod;

• income and ex penses a re t rans lated at average exchange rates  fo r  the pe r iod; an d

• reta ined ear n ings a re t rans lated at the exchang e rates p reva i l ing at the date of  the 

t ransact ion.

E xchange d i f fe rences a r i s ing on t ran s lat ion of fo re ig n ope rat i ons  w i th funct iona l cu r rencies 

othe r than Aus t ra l ian do l la r s  a re recogn i sed in othe r com prehens ive incom e an d inc luded in 

th e fo re ign cu r rency t rans lat ion rese r ve in the s tatement  of f inanc ia l  pos i t ion.  The cum u lat ive 

amount o f these d i f fe rences i s  recl ass i f ied in to p rof i t  o r  los s in the pe r iod in w h ich the ope rat ion 

i s  d i sposed of. 
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i .  LEASES

Leases a re c las s i f ied at the i r  i ncept ion as  e i th er  ope rat i ng o r f in ance leases based on the 

econ omi c subs tance of  the ag reem ent so as to ref lect the r i sk s  and b enef i t s  i nc identa l  to 

ow ne rsh ip.

F inance leases,  wh ich ef fect ive ly t rans fe r  to the G roup, substant ia l l y a l l  of  the r i sk s  and benef i t s 

inc i denta l  to ow ne r sh ip of  the leased i tem, a re cap i ta l i sed at th e p rese nt va lue of the m in i mum 

lease payme nts and amo r t i sed ove r  the pe r iod the G roup i s  ex pected to b enef i t  f rom the use of 

th e leased asset s .   Operat ing l ease payments ,  whe re the le sso r e f fect i ve ly reta i ns subs tant i a l l y 

a l l  o f the r i sk s and benef it s  of  ow n er sh ip of the leased i tem s,  a re recogn i sed i n ope rat i ng p rof i t 

o r  los s  ove r  the l ease te r m.

j .  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Prov i s i on i s  made fo r  benef i t s  accr u i ng to em pl oyees in  respect of  sa la r ies  and wages,  an nua l 

leave and long se r v ice leave w hen i t  i s  p robab le that set t lem ent w i l l  be req u i red and they a re 

capabl e of  be in g measu red re l iab l y.

SHORT TER M BENEF ITS
L iab i l i t ies a r i s ing i n respect o f  wag es ,  sa la r ies , annua l leave and othe r emp loyee benef i t s 

ex pected to be w h o l ly  set t led w ith in 12 months  rep resent the amount wh ich the G roup has a 

p resent  obl igat ion to pay resu l t i ng f rom em p loyees’ se r v i ces p rov ided up to the repor t ing date. 

L iab i l i t ies have been ca l cu lated at the amount s  ex pected to app ly at the t i me of  set t lement. 

On - cos t s a re i nc l uded in  th i s amount.

LONG TERM BENEFITS
The l iab i l i t y  fo r emp l oyee benef i t s  to long ser v ice l eave rep resent s  th e p resent  va l ue of  the 

es t imated futu re cash out f lows to be made by the emp loye r  resu l t in g f rom empl oyees’ se r v ices 

p rov ided up to the repor t i ng date.

L iab i l i t ies fo r  emp loyee benef i t s wh ich a re not expected to b e set t led w i th in  t we lve months a re 

d i scounted us ing co r po rate bond rates  at repo r t i ng date, w h ich mos t c l ose ly match the te r ms 

of matu r i t y of  th e re lated l iab i l i t ies .

In  dete r m i n ing th e l iab i l i t y fo r l ong ser v ice leave, cons iderat ion has been g iven to futu re 

inc reases i n wage an d sa la r y rates ,  and the G roup’s  exper ience w ith s ta f f  depar tu res .  Re lated 

on - cos ts  have a l so been inc luded in the l iab i l i t y.

SHARE-BASE D PAYMENTS
Sha re - based com pensat ion benef i t s  a re p rov ided to emp loyees v ia th e Company’s Em ployee 

Opt i on P lan an d an emp loyee sha re scheme. In fo r mat i on re lat ing to  these schemes i s set out 

in  N ote 21. 

The fa i r  va lue of opt ions  g ranted un de r the Com pany’s Em pl oyee Opt ion P lan i s  recogn i sed 

as an emp loyee benef i t  expense over  th e ves t in g pe r iod w i th  a co r respon d ing inc rease in the 

opt ion rese r ve. The fa i r  va l ue i s  measu red at g rant date and recogn ised ove r  the pe r iod du r ing 

w h ich the emp loyees becom e uncond i t iona l l y ent i t led to the opt ions .

The fa i r  va lue at g rant date i s  i ndepe ndent l y dete r m ined us ing the B lack- Sch o les  p r ic ing m odel 

th at takes into account the exerc i se p r ice, the te r m of  the opt ion,  the ves t ing and pe r fo r mance 

cr i te r ia ,  th e i mpact o f d i l ut ion,  the non -t radeabl e natu re of  th e opt ion, the sh a re p r ice at g rant 

date and expected p r ice vo l at i l i t y of  the under l y i ng sha re,  the exp ected d iv idend y ie l d and 

th e r i sk- f ree inte res t  rate fo r  the te r m of th e opt ion
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At  each repo r t i ng date, the ent i t y rev i ses  i t s e s t i mate of  the num be r of opt i ons  that i s  ex pected 

to becom e exerc i sab le.  The e mpl oyee b enef i t  expense recogn i sed each per i od takes i nto 

account th e m os t recent es t i mate. Upon the exerc i se of opt ions ,  the bal ance of the sha re -

based payments  rese r ve re lat ing to th ose opt ions  i s  t rans fe r red to sha re capi ta l .

The ma r ket va l ue of  sha res  i s sued to em ployees fo r  no cash cons ide rat ion under the em ployee 

sha re scheme i s  recogn i sed as an emp loyee b enef i t s ex pen se w i th a co r respond ing i nc rease in 

equ i t y  when the employees become ent i t led to the sh a res . 

k.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and othe r payab les  rep resent th e l iab i l i t ies  fo r  goods and se r v i ces received by th e ent i t y 

th at rema in unpa id at the end of  the repo r t in g pe r iod. The am ount s a re unsecured and a re 

recogn i sed as a cu r rent l i ab i l i t y  w i th the amount s  no r ma l l y pa id w i th i n 3 0 days o f recogn i t ion. 

l .  F INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In i t ia l recogn i t ion and m easu reme nt

F inanc ia l  i ns t r um ent s ,  inco r po rat i ng f inancia l  as set s  and f inanc ia l  l iab i l i t ies ,  a re recogn i sed 

w hen the ent i t y becomes a par t y to the cont ractua l  p rov i s i ons of the in s t r ument.

F inanc ia l  in s t r uments  a re in i t ia l ly  m easu red at fa i r  va lue p lus  t ransact ions  cost s  wh ere the 

in s t r ument i s  not c las s i f ied as at  fa i r  va l ue th rough p rof i t  o r  l os s .   F in ancia l  in s t r ument s  a re 

c la ss i f ied and measu red as set  out be low.

CL ASSIF ICATION AND SUBSEQUENT MEASUREME NT
Loans and rece i vab les   
Loans and rece ivab les a re non - de r ivat i ve f i nanc ia l  as set s w i th f i xed o r  dete r m inab l e payments 

th at a re n ot  qu oted i n an act ive m ar ket an d a re s tated at amo r t i sed cost us ing the ef fect ive 

inte res t  rate m eth od. 

F inancia l l iab i l i t i es 
Non - der ivat ive f in anc ia l  l iab i l i t ies (exc l ud i ng f inanc ia l  gu arantees) a re subsequent ly measu red 

at am or t i sed cos t us ing the ef fect ive i nte res t  ra te method.  

T rade rece ivab l es 
Trade recei vab les a re recogn i sed in i t i a l ly at fa i r  va l ue and su bsequent ly  measu red at amo r t i sed 

cos t u s ing the ef fect ive inte res t m ethod, l es s p rov i s ion fo r  im pa i r ment.   Trade rece ivab les  a re 

genera l l y  due fo r set t l ement w i th i n 3 0 days.

 

Co l lectab i l i t y  of  t rade receivab les i s  rev iewed on an ongo ing bas i s .  Debt s w h ich a re k now n to be 

unco l lect ib le a re w r i t ten of f  by reducin g the ca r r y ing amount d i rect l y.  A n a l lowance accou nt 

(p rov i s ion fo r  impa i r m ent of t rade rece ivab les)  i s  used w hen the re i s  ob ject ive ev idence that 

th e G roup w i l l  not be ab le to co l lect a l l  amounts  due acco rd in g to th e o r ig i nal  te r ms of  the 

rece ivab l es .  S ign i f icant f in anc ia l  d i f f icu l t i es  of  the debto r,  p rob ab i l i t y  that the debto r w i l l  ente r 

bank ruptcy o r  f inancia l  reo rgan i sat ion,  and defau l t  o r  de l inquen cy in  payments  (m ore than 

3 0 days overdue) a re cons ide red ind icato r s  th at the t rade rece ivab le i s impa i red. The am ou nt 

of the impa i r m ent a l lowan ce i s  the d i f fe rence bet ween the asset ’s  ca r r y ing am ount and the 

p resent  va l ue of  es t i mated futu re cash f low s,  d i scounted at the o r i g ina l ef fect ive inte res t  rate. 

Cash f low s re lat ing to sho r t - te r m rece ivab les a re not d i scounted i f  the ef fect of d i scount ing i s 

im mate r ia l .

The am ount of the im pa i r ment lo s s i s  recogn i sed in  the s tatement of p rof i t  o r  los s  and othe r 

com prehens i ve i ncom e w i th in other  ex penses .  When a t rade rece ivab le fo r wh ich an i mpa i r m ent 

a l lowance had been recog n ised becomes unco l lect i b le in  a subsequent pe r iod, i t  i s  w r i t ten of f 

aga i ns t  th e a l lowance account. Sub sequent recove r ies o f amount s  p rev ious ly w r i t ten of f  a re 

c red i ted aga ins t  gene ra l  and admi n i s t rat i ve expen ses in  the s tatement of  p rof i t  o r  l os s and 

othe r comprehens ive incom e.
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IMPAIR MENT OF F INANCIAL ASSETS
At each repo r t ing date, the G roup as ses ses  whethe r the re i s  ob ject ive ev idence that a f i nanc ia l 

in s t r ument has be en i mpa i red.

The ca r r y ing amount of  f inan ci a l  a sset s inc l ud ing u nco l l ect ib l e t rade recei vab les  i s  reduced 

by the i mpai r ment lo ss th rough the use of an a l lowance account.   Subseq uent recover i es of 

amount s p rev ious ly w r i t ten of f  a re c red i ted ag a ins t  the a l lowance account.   Ch anges in  the 

ca r r y ing amount of the a l l owance account a re recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  los s .

I f  i n a subsequent pe r iod, the amount of the i mpai r ment los s decreases and the decrease 

can be re lated ob ject ive ly to an event  occur r ing af te r the im pa i r ment was recogn i sed, the 

p rev ious ly  recogn i sed i mpai r ment lo ss i s  rever sed th rough prof i t  o r  los s .

 

F INANCIAL GUARANTEES
Whe re mate r ia l ,  f i nanc ia l  guarantees i s sued that req u i re the i s suer  to make speci f ied payments 

to re i mbur se th e ho l de r  fo r  a los s i t  i ncu r s  because a spec i f i ed debtor  fa i l s  to make payment 

w hen due a re recogn i sed as a f i nanc i a l  l iab i l i t y  at fa i r  va lue on in it ia l  recogn it i on. 

The fa i r  va l ue of  f inanc ia l  g ua rantee cont ract s has been as ses sed us in g the p robab i l i t y  weighted 

d i scounted cash f low approach. The p robabi l i t y  h as been based on:

• th e l i ke l i hood of the gua ranteed pa r t y defau l t in g in a 12- month per iod;

• th e p ropo r t ion of the ex posu re that i s  not ex pected to be recove red due to the 

gua ranteed pa r t y defau l t ing; and

• th e max i mum l os s ex posed i f  the g uaranteed par t y  were to defau l t.

F inanc ia l  gua rantees a re subsequent ly  measu red at the h ighe r  o f the bes t es t im ate of  the 

ob l igat ion  in  accordance w i th A A SB 137:  P rov i s ions ,  Cont ingent L iab i l i t ies and Cont i ngent 

A sset s  an d the amount in i t ia l l y recog n i sed l ess ,  when app ropr iate,  cum ul at ive am or t i sat ion in 

accordance w i th  A A SB 118:  Revenue. W he re the ent i t y g ives guarantees in  exchange fo r  a fee, 

revenue i s  recogn i sed in  acco rdance w i th A A SB 118 .

DERECOGNITION 
F inanc ia l  a s set s a re de recog n i sed w he re the cont ractual r ight s  to rece ipt o f cash f low s ex pi res 

o r  the asset i s  t rans fe r red to anothe r pa r t y  whe reby the ent i t y no longe r h as any s ign i f icant 

cont i nu i ng invo lvem ent in the r i sk s  and benef i t s  a ssociated w i th the asset.  F inanc ia l  l iab i l i t ies 

a re de recog n i sed whe re the re lated ob l igat ions a re e i the r d i scha rged, cance l led o r  exp i re. 

The d i f fe rence bet ween the car r y ing va lue of  th e f i nancia l  l i ab i l i t y  ex t ing u i sh ed o r t rans fe r red 

to anothe r  par t y and the fa i r va lue of  cons ide rat ion pa id ,  in cl ud ing the t rans fe r  of non - cash 

asset s o r  l i ab i l i t ies  as su med i s  recogn i sed in p rof i t  o r  lo s s .

m. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

I s sued an d pa id up cap i ta l  i s  recogn i sed at  the fa i r  va l ue of  the cons ide rat ion received by the 

Company.

 

T ransact i on cos t s  a r i s in g on the i s sue of equ i t y in s t r um ent s a re recogn i sed d i rect ly  in eq u it y as 

a reduct ion of  th e p roceeds of  the eq u i t y in s t r ument s  to wh i ch the cos t s  re late.

n. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Bas ic ea rn ings pe r  sha re (E PS) i s  ca l cu lated as the n et resu l t  at t r i butab le to mem be r s ,  ad jus ted 

to exc lude cost s  of  se r v ic i ng equ i t y (oth e r than d i v idends),  d i v ided by the wei ghted average 

num be r of  o rd ina r y sha res , ad jus ted fo r  any  bonus e lement. 

• D i luted E PS i s  ca lcu lated as the net resu l t  a t t r ibutab le to members ,  ad jus ted fo r : 

• cos t s of se r v ic in g equi t y (othe r  than d iv idends) and p refe ren ce sha re d iv i den ds;

• th e af ter- tax ef fect of d iv idends and inte res t  a ssoc iated w i th d i l ut i ve p otent ia l  o rd ina r y 
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sha res   th at  have been recog n ised as ex penses;  and

• othe r non - d i sc ret iona r y changes in revenues o r expen ses du r ing the pe r iod that woul d 

resu l t  f rom the d i lu t ion of potent ia l  o rd in ar y sh a res ;

• d iv ided by the we ighted average n umbe r of  o rd i na r y sha res and d i lu t ive potent ia l 

o rd ina r y sha res ,  ad ju s ted fo r any bonus e le ment.

o.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equ iva lent s inc ludes cash on hand, depos i t s he ld at ca l l  w i th f i nan ci a l  in s t i tu t ions , 

othe r sh or t - te r m, h ig h ly  l iq u id i nves tm ent s w i th  o r ig ina l  matu r i t ies  w i th th ree months  o r les s that 

a re read i ly  conver t ib l e to k now n am ou nt s of  cash and w h ich a re sub ject to an ins i gn i f i cant r i sk 

of chan ges in va lue.

p. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Gove r nm ent g rant s a re recogn i sed at fa i r va lue wh ere the re i s  reasonab le as su rance that the 

g rant w i l l  be received and a l l  g rant cond i t ions w i l l  be m et. G rant s re l at i ng to expense i tems a re 

recogn i sed as income on the date of receipt  of  the g rant.

The Gover nm ent has the r ight  to rev iew g rants pa id and may c law back funds in the event of 

an excess  c la im.

q. BORROWING COSTS

Bo r row ing cos t s  a re ex pen sed as incu r red.

r .  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The D i recto r s  eva luate es t imates an d judgments  incor porated into the f inanc ia l  repo r t  based 

on h is to r ica l  k now ledge and bes t ava i l ab le cu r rent i nfo r m at i on .  E s t imates as sume a reasonable 

ex pectat ion of futu re event s and a re based on cu r rent t rends and econom ic data, obta in ed 

both ex te r na l l y and w ith in th e G roup.

Key es t im ates
( i )  Impa i r ment

The G roup as sesses im pa i r ment at the end of each repor t i ng pe r iod by eva luat ing con d it ions 

and event s spec i f ic to the G roup that m ay be ind i cat ive of  impa i r m ent t r i gge rs .  Recoverab le 

amount s of re levant asset s a re reas sessed us in g val ue - i n - use ca lcu lat ions  wh i ch inco r po rate 

va r ious key as sumpt ions .   Im pa i r ment tes t s a re ca r r i ed out on i ntang ib les ,  rece ivab les and 

subs id ia r i es .

W i th  respect to cash f low p ro ject ions in Aust ra l ia an d ove r seas,  modes t g row th rates have 

been facto red i nto va luat ion m ode l s fo r th e nex t  f i ve year s on the b as i s of management’s 

ex pectat ion s a round the Group’s cont i nued ab i l i t y  to captu re m ar ket sha re f rom com pet i to r s . 

Key judgment s

 ( i )  P rov i s ion fo r Im pa i r ment of Recei vab les

Prov i s i on fo r  im pa i r ment of t rade rece ivab l es has been i nc luded in N ote 6 Recei vab les .

 ( i i )  Defe r red Tax A s set

The ex tent  to  wh i ch defe r red tax as set s can be recogn i sed i s  based on an assessment of  the 

p robab i l i t y  o f the Com pany’s fu tu re taxab le in come ag ains t  w h ich the defe r red tax asset s 

can be ut i l i sed. In  addi t i on, s ign i f icant j udgement i s  requ i red in  assess ing the impact of  any 

lega l o r  econom ic l im it s  o r  un ce r ta int ie s  in  va r iou s tax j u r i sd ict ions
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( i i i )  Em p loyee Be nef i t s P rov i s ions

Employment on - cost s  expenses such as wor ke r s’  com pensat ion insu rance and pay ro l l  tax a re 

inc l uded in the ca luc l at i on of  emp loyee benef i t  p rov i s ions . 

( i v)  Capi ta l i sat ion of Development Cost s

D i s t ing ui sh i ng the research and development phases of  a new cus tomi sed sof t wa re p ro ject 

and dete r m i n in g w hether  th e recog n i t ion requ i re ments fo r  the cap i ta l i sat ion of  deve lopm ent 

cos t s a re m et requ i res judgement.  Af te r cap i ta l i sat ion, management mon i to r s w hether the 

recogn i t ion requ i rements  cont inue to be m et  and whethe r  th e re a re any i nd icato r s that 

cap i ta l i sed cos t s may b e i mpa i red.

s.  GOING CONCERN

A s at 3 0 Jun e 2 018 the com pany has cash rese r ves of  $1,157,536 (2 017:  $2,5 4 3,412) and a net 

cu r rent  as set  pos i t ion of $5 8 3,426 (2017:  $1,593,730).  The cu r rent  year lo ss befo re tax fo r  the 

pe r iod was $ 4 4 5,0 82 (2 017:  P rof i t  $1,932 ,019 -  af te r  rece ipt of  $5,0 0 0,0 0 0 re lated to ou r Ch i ron 

sof t wa re d i spute).  The an nua l f i nan ci a l  repor t  has been p rep ared on a g oin g conce r n bas i s 

w h ich as sumes that the consol idated ent i t y  w i l l  be ab le to meet th e i r debts  as  and w he n 

th ey fa l l  due. The fo l low ing mat te r s  have been cons ide red by the d i recto rs  i n dete rm in ing the 

appropr iatenes s of the g o ing conce rn bas i s of p repa rat ion in the f inanc ia l  s tatements :

Succes s in  cont inued ope rat ions

I n  the cu r rent and p rev ious f i nan ci a l  year,  the Grou p was success fu l  i n obta in ing cont ract s 

w i th  Gove r nment agencies  and la rge com mun i t y hea l th o rg an i sat ions .  Th i s i s  expected to 

inc rease cash f low s re lated to the operat ions o f the ent i t y.  We h ave p repa red and p rov ided 

a cash f low s tatem ent fo r the nex t 12 month s  i nd i cat ing pos i t i ve cash f low s fo r th i s  pe r iod up 

to Septem be r 2019.   Managem ent a l so have th e ab i l i t y  to reduce ope rat ing cos t s in  re lat ion 

to development sh ou ld the n eed a r i se.  I ncreases in ex pected co l l ect ions  w i th the ab i l i t y 

to reduce ope rat ing cos ts  i n re lat ion to deve lopm ent w i l l  a l low the g roup to increase i t s 

ope rat ing cash f low s. 

E xpans ion in to  the ASEAN re g ion

The Group has ex panded i t s  act i v i t ie s in  the A SE AN reg ion (Mal ays ia,  S ing apore, I ndones ia , 

Tha i land, V ietn am). Managem ent ex pect to  l eve rage th i s pos i t i on to increase operat ing cash 

f low s th rough the sa le of  sof t ware and se r v ices ta rgeted towards inte r nat iona l  mar ket s  th rough 

inte r nat i ona l d i s t r ibuto r s .

Avai l ab i l i t y o f  F inance

The G roup, th rough i t s  f inanc ia l  in s t i tu t ions , i s  ab le to  acqu i re add i t iona l f inan ci a l  suppo r t i f 

so requ i red. A faci l i t y  l im i t  o f $1,0 0 0,0 0 0 i s  ava i lab l e im med iate ly to the Com pany.

On the bas i s  of these facto r s ,  the D i recto r s  be l ieve th at the go ing con ce r n b as i s  of 

p reparat ion i s  appropr iate and th e G roup w i l l  be ab le to repay the i r  debt s a s and when they 

fa l l  due.  In the event  that the G roup cannot cont inue as a go ing con ce r n,  i t  may not rea l i se 

i t s a sset s and set t l e i t s  l iab i l i t ies  in the no rmal  cou r se of  op erat ions  and at th e amou nt s s tated 

in the f i nanc ia l  s tatements .

t .  NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING 
INTERPRETATIONS

Account ing Standards i s sued by the A A SB that a re not yet m andator i l y app l icab l e to the Group, 

together  w ith an as ses sm ent of  th e potent ia l  im pact of  such p ronou ncements  on the Group 

w hen adopted in fu tu re pe r iods,  a re d i scus sed be low:
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– AASB 9: Financial Instruments and associated Amending Standards (applicable to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

AASB 9 replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and includes revised 

requirements for the classiÀ cation and measurement of À nancial instruments, revised recognition and 

de-recognition requirements for À nancial instruments, revised impairment requirements and simpliÀ ed 

requirements for hedge accounting.

The revised requirements include: 

-  simpliÀ cations to the classiÀ cation of À nancial assets 

-  simpliÀ cations to the accounting of embedded derivatives 

-  an expected loss impairment model 

-  the irrevocable election to recognise gains and losses on investments in equity instruments that are not 

-  held for trading in other comprehensive income. 

-  a new model for hedge accounting that will allow greater Á exibility in the ability to hedge risk,       

   particularly with respect to hedges of non-À nancial items. 

The À nancial assets and liabilities of the Group consist of cash, receivables and payables. Therefore, the 

directors do not expect a material impact on transition to AASB 9.

– AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (applicable to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019) 

This Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to revenue with a single, 

principles-based model. Except for a limited number of exceptions, including leases, the new revenue 

model in AASB 15 will apply to all contracts with customers as well as non-monetary exchanges between 

entities in the same line of business to facilitate sales to customers and potential customers.

The core principle of the Standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 

promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reÁ ects the consideration to which the entity 

expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods or services. To achieve this objective, AASB 15 provides 

the following À ve-step process:

- identify the contract(s) with a customer;

- identify the performance obligations in the contract(s);

- determine the transaction price;

- allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract(s); and

- recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligations are satisÀ ed.

The directors have made a preliminary assessment of the impact as follows:

New Licenses:
New Licenses under AASB 15 will be recognised over the service period in which they fall due. This is 

consistent with the approach taken for recurring revenue. Income received in advance for this service 

period will be classiÀ ed as a current liability.

Recurring licenses:
There will be no change under AASB 15 for recognition of recurring licenses. These are recognised over 

the service period of the contract. Income received in advance for this service period will be classiÀ ed 

as a current liability.

Professional Fees:
For professional service offered to existing clients for ad-hoc services revenue will be recognised when 

the performance obligation is met which would normally occur when services are rendered. For 

professional services performed for new clients related to the setup of software, revenue will recognised 

over the assessed expected life of the client. Our current assessment of client life is for À ve years. This is 

based on our longest contract period offered as well as management’s assessment of client life.

Other income:
Other income will not be signiÀ cantly impacted by AASB 15. It will be recognised as income when the 

identiÀ ed performance obligations have been satisÀ ed.
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The ef fect on revenue (conso l idated) accounts  i s  as fo l lows:

Account

2018 as per current 

accounting 

standards

$

Potential restatement 

under AASB 15 

requirements

$

2018 Restated 

under AASB 15 

requirements

$

Prof i t  and Los s

Decrease in  Revenue f rom 

th e sa le of  l icen ses and 

ma inte nance cont ract s

3 ,8 8 0,4 4 3 (18 8 ,792)* 3 ,691,6 51

Decrease in  Revenue f rom 

p rofes s iona l  ser v i ces
1,40 8 ,076 (84 5,592)* 562 ,48 4

State ment of F in ancia l 

Pos i t ion

Increase in  N ew 

subscr i pt ions/p rofes s i ona l 

ser v ices in  advance

- 1,03 4 ,3 8 4 1,03 4 ,3 8 4

Account

2017 as per current 

accounting 

standards

$

Potential restatement 

under AASB 15 

requirements

$

2017 Restated 

under AASB 15 

requirements

$

ProÀ t and Loss

Revenue from the sale of licenses 

and maintenance contracts
8,415,775 (281,984)* 8,133,791

Revenue from professional services 1,191,795 (443,251)* 748,544

Statement of Financial Position

Increase in New subscriptions/

professional services in advance
- 725,235 725,235

*Res tatement of  revenue i s based on the chan ges ant i c i pated by A A SB 15 and by the as su mpt ions 

made by management as  at p repa rat ion date of the f i nanc ia l  s tatements .  A s sumpt ions may be 

reas sessed i n the futu re account i ng pe r iod’s  resu l t s  in d i f fe rences in  the ex pected res tatement 

of revenue ba lances fo r  the 2 018 F inan c ia l  Yea r.
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– AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2019).

AASB 16 will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to leases in AASB 117: Leases 

and related Interpretations. AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model that eliminates the 

requirement for leases to be classiÀ ed as operating or À nance leases.

The main changes introduced by the new Standard include:

- recognition of a right-to-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-term leases with less 

than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-value assets);

- depreciation of right-to-use assets in line with AASB 116: Property, Plant and Equipment in proÀ t or 

loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and interest components;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate are included in the initial 

measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the commencement date;

- by applying a practical expedient, a lessee is permitted to elect not to separate non-lease 

components and instead account for all components as a lease; and

- additional disclosure requirements.

The directors expect that the adoption of AASB 16 will result in lease assets and liabilities being 

recognised on balance sheet and a change in how related expenses are incurred. It is expected total 

property leases of $667,550 will be recognised on the balance sheet as lease assets and liabilities and 

that annual rental of approximately $154,693 will be reclassiÀ ed from occupancy costs to depreciation 

and interest.
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– AASB 2018-1 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle

AASB 2018-1 makes a number of relatively minor amendments to AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 

111 Joint Arrangements, AASB 112 Income Taxes and AASB 123 Borrowing Costs.

When these amendments are À rst adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material 

impact on the À nancial statements.

– AASB 2018-1 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle

Interpretation 22 looks at what exchange rate to use for translation when payments are made or 

received in advance of the related asset, expense or income. Although AASB 121 The Effects of 

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates sets out requirements about which exchange rate to use when 

recording a foreign currency transaction on initial recognition in an entity’s functional currency, the 

IFRS Interpretations Committee had observed diversity in practice in circumstances in which an entity 

recognises a non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration. The diversity resulted from 

the fact that some entities were recognising revenue using the spot exchange rate at the date of the 

receipt of the advance consideration while others were using the spot exchange rate at the date that 

revenue was recognised. 

Interpretation 22 addresses this issue by clarifying that the date of the transaction for the purpose of 

determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or 

part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary 

liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments 

or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or 

receipt of advance consideration.

When these amendments are À rst adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020, there will be no material 

impact on the À nancial statements.
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2. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Revenue

Sales of licenses 1,267,218 906,187

Maintenance contracts 2,613,225 2,509,588

Professional services 1,408,076 1,191,795

5,288,519 4,607,570

Other Income

Settlement on Chiron Software litigation - 5,000,000

Interest received on À nancial assets 16,969 43,206

Research and Development grants 491,888 423,002

Other 173,495 226,403

682,352 5,692,611

                        5,970,871 10,300,181

3. EXPENSES

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

ProÀ t before income tax includes the following speciÀ c expenses

Direct external costs 207,310 263,754

Depreciation of non-current assets 63,624 87,931

Amortisation of Intangibles 132,778 266,021

Impairment of Intangibles - 917,381

Wages and salaries, net of Capitalised Development cost 4,172,422 4,954,609

Travel and accommodation 198,054 116,222

Operating lease expense 154,693 149,700

Finance cost (interest expense and bank charges) 110,060 146,500
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4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

The major components of tax expense comprise:

(Increase) in Current Tax (805,136) (481,842)

Increase/(decrease) in Deferred Taxes 781,288 685,816

(23,848) 203,974

The prima facie tax on proÀ t from ordinary activities before 
income tax is reconciled to the income tax as follows:

(Loss)/proÀ t from continuing operations before income tax (445,082) 1,932,019

Prima facie tax/(tax beneÀ t) at 27.5% (2017: 30%) (122,398) 579,606

Add tax effect of:

Other expenses (non-deductible) 44,903 19,965

Entertainment (non-deductible) 2,185 17,712

Legal expenses (non-deductible) 2,829 5,815

Legal Expenses deducted in 2016 - 182,858

Tax Losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset 122,398 -

Prior period differences 176,105 1,122,211

Less tax effect of:

Tax losses deducted - (1,098,248)

Grants receivable - (126,901)

Refundable tax offsets (249,870) (149,537)

Tax losses recognised - (349,507)

Income tax (beneÀ t)/expense recognised (23,848) 203,974

Current and Deferred tax balances:

Assets:

CURRENT/NON-CURRENT

Current tax asset 805,136 481,842

Deferred tax asset 517,819 596,599

Liabilities:

Deferred tax liability 1,984,923 1,282,415
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Cash at bank and on hand 657,289 384,966

Deposits at call 500,247 2,158,446

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,157,536 2,543,412

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Consolidated Group

2017

$

2017

$

Current

Trade receivables 1,502,222 1,850,658

R&D Tax Offset 789,905 -

Impairment of receivables (29,560) (29,560)

2,262,567 1,821,098

Non-Current

Trade receivables - 140,911

- 140,911

Total Trade Receivables 2,262,567 1,962,009

Prov is ion fo r Im pai rment o f  Cu r ren t  T rade Rece ivabl es

Cu r rent t rade rece ivab les a re non - interes t  bear ing receivab les and g enera l l y on 3 0 - day te r ms . 

A p rov i s ion fo r im pa i r ment  i s  recogn i sed w hen there i s  ob ject ive ev idence that an ind iv idua l 

t rade recei vab le i s  impa i red. 

Movem ents in the p rov i s ion a re as fo l low s:

Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

Balance at beginning of year 29,560 911

   Charge for year - 28,649

   Amounts written off - -

   Amounts reversed - -

Closing balance 29,560 29,560
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T rade rece ivab l es - i m pa i red

A s at 3 0 Jun e 2 018 , th e fo l low ing t rade receivab les of the Group we re past due and i mpai red 

(2017:  $29,50 0). The age ing of t rade rece ivab l es w h ich have been impai red a re as fo l low s: 

Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

1 to 3 months - -

3 to 6 months - -

Over 6 months 29,560 29,560

T rade rece ivab l es tha t a re past  due bu t not  i m pa i re d

A s of  30 J un e 2018 ,  t rade rece ivab l es of $ 5 5 0,318 (2017:  $ 490,467)  we re past due but not im pa i red. 

These re late to a number of i ndep endent cus tom e r s fo r  w hom the re i s  no recent h i s to r y of  defau lt . 

The age ing anal ys i s  of these t rade rece ivab les  i s  a s fo l lows:

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

1 month 91,436 150,759

2-3 months 19,612 131,287

Over 3 months 439,270 208,421

Fai r  Va lues

The ca r r y ing va l ue les s i mpa i r ment p rov i s i on of t rade recei vab les  a re assum ed to app rox imate fa i r 

va lue.

7. OTHER ASSETS

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Current

Prepayments - Expenses 79,287 77,504

Security bond - Property at Level 2, 607 Bourke Street Melbourne 108,465 108,465

187,752 185,969
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

a. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT SUMMARY

Property, plant and equipment
Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

 Leasehold improvements – at cost 178,787 178,787

 Accumulated amortisation (135,765) (117,727)

43,022 61,060

 Plant and equipment – at cost 232,842 344,221

 Accumulated depreciation (188,170) (254,543)

44,672 89,678

Total property, plant and equipment 87,694 150,738

b. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT RECONCILIATION

Movement in Carrying Amount

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Leasehold improvements

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 61,060 86,722

Additions - -

Amortisation (18,038) (25,662)

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 43,022 61,060

Plant and equipment 

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 89,678 85,891

Additions 580 66,056

Disposal, net - -

Depreciation (45,586) (62,269)

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 44,672 89,678

Total property, plant and equipment 87,694 150,738
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

a. INTANGIBLE ASSET SUMMARY

Intangible assets
Consolidated Group

2018
$

2017
$

Products under development – at cost* 5,794,972 3,946,143

Developed Products

Cost 2,844,203 2,844,203

Accumulated amortisation (1,187,823) (1,055,045)

Accumulated Impairment (917,381) (917,381)

Total Developed Products 738,999 871,777

Total intangible assets 6,533,971 4,817,920

*  T h i s  rep resent s cost s  a r i s i ng f rom the development phase of inte r nal  p ro ject s .  Devel opment 

cos t s i nco r po rate d i rect l y at t r ibutab le emp loyee ben ef i t  expenses ,  fees to reg i s te r  a lega l  r ig ht 

and oth er d i rect m ate r ia l  and se r v ices cos ts  to devel op the p ro ject.

Deve loped p roducts  have f in i te usefu l  l i fe of  10 yea rs  wh ich a re amor t i sed on a s t ra ight  l ine 

bas i s ove r  the i r  ef fect ive l i fe.  The cu r rent amo r t i sat i on cha rges fo r  intang i b le asset s  have been 

separate ly  p resented as amo r t i sat ion expense i n the con sol idated s tateme nt of  p rof i t  o r los s 

and oth er compreh ens ive income. 

b. INTANGIBLE ASSET RECONCILIATION

Movement in Carrying Amount

Products under 
Development

$

Developed Products

$

Total

$

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 2016 2,838,462 2,008,690 4,847,152

Additions 1,107,681 46,488 1,154,169

Transfer of commercialised product - - -

Disposals - - -

Amortisation charge - (266,020) (266,020)

Impairment - (917,381) (917,381)

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 2017 3,946,143 871,777 4,817,920

Carrying amount – as at 1 July 2017 3,946,143 871,777 4,817,920

Additions 1,848,829 - 1,848,829

Transfer of commercialised product - - -

Disposals - - -

Amortisation charge - (132,778) (132,778)

Impairment - - -

Carrying amount – as at 30 June 2018 5,794,972 738,999 6,533,971
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c.  IMPAIRMENT DISCLOSURES

IMPAIR MENT TEST ING OF PRODUC TS UNDER DEVE LOPMENT
I r respect ive of  whethe r the re i s any ind i cat ion of  impa i r m ent,  the company w i l l  tes t  an 

intang i b l e asset w i th an indef in i te usefu l  l i fe  o r  an in tang ib le as set not yet ava i lab le fo r u se 

fo r im pa i r ment annua l l y by compa r ing i t s  ca r r y ing am ount w i th  i t s  recove rab le amount.  Th i s 

im pa i r ment tes t  i s  pe r fo r m ed as at the en d of the f inan ci a l  per i od. Th e impa i r m ent tes t ing had 

been per fo r m ed based on the cash gene rat i ng un i t s  ident i f ied by sof t ware p roduct l i nes .  Th ese 

p roduct l i nes fa l l  w i th in  the acute and n on - acute repor t ing segm ents as out l in ed in Note 26 . 

The recove rab le am ount of each cash - ge ne rat i ng un i t  above i s dete r m ined based on va l ue -

in - use ca lcu lat ions .  Va l ue - in - use i s ca lcu lated based on th e p resent  va l ue of  cash f low 

p ro ject i ons ove r a 5  year per iod. The cash f l ow s a re d i scounted us i ng a p re - tax d i scou nt 

rate of  10 % . The fo l low ing key assumpt i ons we re used in the va l ue - in - use ca lcu lat ions :

• P re -tax d i scount rate of 10 %

• G row th rates (sa les)

• Employment cos t s

• No te r m ina l g row th rate to ex t rapo late cash f lows beyond th e fo recast pe r iod 

Sales Growth Rates Discount Rates

2018 2017 2018 2017

Hospitals 2.1% 3.4% 10% 10%

Consumer 2.1% 3.4% 10% 10%

Connectivity 2.1% 3.4% 10% 10%

Allied Health 2.1% 3.4% 10% 10%

The sof t wa re p roduct l i nes h ave a f i n i te usefu l  l i fe,  hence no te r m ina l va lue had been i nc luded 

at th e end of  the 5 year pe r iod in the recove rab le amount calcu l at i on.  Man agement has 

based the va lue - i n -use ca lcu lat ions on budg ets  fo r each repor t in g segment. These b udgets 

use h i s to r ica l  we ighted ave rage grow th rates to  p ro ject revenue. Cos ts  a re ca lcu l ated tak ing 

into account h i s to r ica l  g ross  ma rg i ns  as  we l l  a s es t imated we ighted average in f la t i on rates ove r 

th e per iod, w h i ch a re cons i s tent w i th in f lat ion rates app l icab le to th e l ocat ions in  w h ich the 

G roup ope rates . 

The tab le be low d i sc l oses the expected subsc r ibe r  g row th rates as  an ave rage fo r  the nex t 

5 year s and the i r  sens i t iv i t y to change. Th e sens i t iv i t y tes t  range rep resent s reduct ions to 

subscr i be r  g row th rates app l ied to each CGU to tes t  at w h ich po int im pa i r ment  ind icator s ex i s t.  

Based on the im pa i r ment tes t ing p er fo r med fo r  each CGU, the re were no im pa i rment i nd icato r s 

fo r p roduct s  un de r deve lopment. 

Subscriber Growth
(5 year average) 

Sensitivity Test Range 
(Reduction of Growth)

2018 2017 2018 2017

Hospitals 13% 13% 10% - 80% 10% - 80%

Consumer 13% 13% 10% - 80% 10% - 80%

Connectivity 13% 13% 10% - 80% 10% - 80%

Allied Health 13% 13% 10% - 80% 10% - 80%
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10. DEFERRED TAX BALANCES

Deferred tax asset

Opening 
Balance

$

Recognised 
in ProÀ t or 

Loss

$

Recognised 
directly in 

Equity

$

Total

$

Opening balance at 1 July 2017 596,599

Future income tax beneÀ ts 

attributable to tax losses
349,507 (49,917) - 299,590

Accrued expenses 51,216 (51,216) - -

Provisions 195,876 22,353 - 218,229

Closing balance at 30 June 2018 517,819

Deferred tax liability

Opening 
Balance

$

Recognised in 
ProÀ t or Loss

$

Recognised 
directly in 

Equity

$

Total

$

Opening balance at 1 July 2017 1,282,415

Prepayments and other assets 986 18,571 - 19,557

Intangible assets 1,281,430 683,936 - 1,965,366

Closing balance at 30 June 2018 1,984,923

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to be utilised 

against future taxable income, based on the Group’s forecast of future operating results which is 

adjusted for signiÀ cant non-taxable income and expenses and speciÀ c limits to the use of any unused 

tax loss or credit. Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full.

11. PAYABLES

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Trade creditors 437,506 469,635

Other creditors and accruals 874,526 609,647

1,312,032 1,079,282

The ca r r y in g va lue of  t rade payabl es i s  a ssumed to approx i mate fa i r  va lue.
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12. INTEREST BEARING LIABIL IT IES

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Current

Borrowings 515,657 389,880

515,657 389,880

Non-Current

Borrowings 1,170,513 1,078,880

1,170,513 1,078,880

Inte res t  bear ing l iab i l i t ie s a re p rov ided to G roup on te r m s of 5  year s  and an ave rage ef fect ive 

inte res t  rate of 8 .6 0 %.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Analysis of Employee BeneÀ ts

Consolidated Group

Opening balance at 1 July 537,233 569,371

Amounts taken during the year (214,140) (254,744)

Amount provided during the year 268,229 222,606

Closing Balance 30 June 591,322 537,233

Current

Employee beneÀ ts 574,201 506,469

Non – Current

Employee beneÀ ts 17,121 30,764

591,322 537,233

14.  UNEARNED INCOME

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Current

Annual subscriptions and maintenance in advance 1,427,676 1,462,960

Non-Current

Annual subscriptions and maintenance in advance - 46,218

1,427,676 1,509,178

An nual  l icence and ma inten ance i n advance reve nue com pr i ses fees fo r th e r ig ht to u se 

ou r so f t ware, mi no r  f i xes ,  r ight s to updated ve r s ions and l im i ted he l p l i ne suppo r t.  Th ese a re 

invo iced up to 12 month s in advance.  The revenue i s  recogn i sed month ly as  the se r v ices a re 

p rov ided to c l ient s .
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15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Consolidated Group

2018

Number

2018

$

2017

Number

2017

$

Issued and paid up capital 33,470,259 20,898,742 33,354,995 20,836,242

Ordinary shares

Opening balance 33,354,995 20,836,242 32,846,662 20,728,742

Add: Shares issued for the purchase of the 

medical software assets of Abaki Pty Ltd
115,264 62,500 208,333 62,500

Add: Shares issued under Exempt Employee 

Share Plan
- - - -

Add: Shares issued from exercise of options - - 300,000 45,000

Total number of shares on issue 33,470,259 20,898,742 33,354,995 20,836,242

a. ORDINARY SHARES

The ho l de r s of  o rd ina r y  sha res a re ent i t led to rece ive d iv iden ds as they  a re dec la red f rom t ime 

to t im e and a re ent i t led to one vote pe r  sha re at the sh areho lder s  m eet ing .  I n the event of 

w ind ing up the Com pany o rd i na r y sha reho lder s  rank af te r a l l  othe r  sha reho lder s and c red i to r s 

and are fu l l y  ent i t led to any net p roceeds of  l iqu idat ion.   The re i s  no pa r va l ue at t r ibuted to the 

sha res  of  the Com pany.
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b. OPTIONS

The m ovement in th e numbe r of un l i s ted opt ion s on i s sue th roughout the yea r i s  as  fo l l ow s:

Consolidated Group

2018     

Number

2017

Number

(i) $0.15 options exercisable on or before 5 July 2017

  Opening balance - 300,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - (300,000)

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance - -

(ii) $0.65 options exercisable on or before 19 December 2017

  Opening balance 530,000 530,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled (530,000) -

 Closing balance - 530,000

(iii) $0.75 options exercisable on or before 26 May 2019

  Opening balance 300,000 300,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 300,000 300,000

(iv) $0.65 options exercisable on or before 10 June 2020

  Opening balance 310,000 390,000

  Issued - -

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - (80,000)

 Closing balance 310,000 310,000

(v) $0.75 options exercisable on or before 30 November 2019

  Opening balance 400,000 -

  Issued - 400,000

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 400,000 400,000

(vi) $0.75 options exercisable on or before 30 November 2021

  Opening balance 600,000 -

  Issued - 600,000

  Exercised - -

  Cancelled - -

 Closing balance 600,000 600,000

 TOTAL 1,610,000 2,140,000
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c.  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Management cont ro l s  the capi ta l  of  the G roup i n o rde r to mai nta in a good debt to equ i t y 

rat io,  p rov ide the sha reho lder s w i th adeq uate retu r ns and ensu re th at th e G roup can fund 

i t s ope rat ions  and cont inue as a go ing concer n . The G rou p’s debt and cap ita l  compr i ses 

o rd ina r y share capi ta l ,  suppor ted by f inancia l  as sets .   T he re a re no ex te r na l l y imposed cap i ta l 

requ i rements .

Management ef fect ive ly manages th e G roup’s cap i ta l  by as sess in g the G roup’s f inanc ia l  r i sk s 

and ad jus t i ng i t s  capi ta l  s t r uctu re i n respon se to changes in  th ese r i s k s  and in the ma r ket.  Th ese 

responses inc l ude the management of  debt leve l s ,  d i s t r i but ions  to sha reho lder s and sha re 

i s sues.

The re have been no changes in the s t rategy adopted by managem ent to cont ro l  the cap i ta l 

of the Group s ince the p r io r  year.  The gear ing rat i os  fo r  the yea rs  ended 3 0 Ju ne 2018 and 3 0 

June 2 017 are as fo l l ow s:

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Gearing Ratios

Borrowings 1,686,170 1,468,760

Less Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,157,536) (2,543,412)

Net Debt 528,634 (1,074,652)

Total equity 4,550,352 4,861,711

Total capital 5,078,986 3,787,059

Gearing Ratio 10% (28%)

16. RESERVES

a. CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The fo re ign cu r ren cy t rans l at ion rese r ve reco rds the fo re ign cu r ren cy d i f fe rences a r i s ing f rom 

th e t ran s l at i on of  fo re i gn ope rat ions .

Reconciliation of currency translation reserve

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Balance at beginning of À nancial year 24,234 30,485

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (6,251)

Balance at the end of the À nancial year 24,234 24,234

b. OPTION RESERVE

The opt i on reser ve records i tems recogn i sed as expenses on va luat ion of emp loyee sha re 

opt ions .

Reconciliation of option reserve

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Balance at beginning of À nancial year 80,845 29,978

Share based payment expense 47,375 50,867

Balance at the end of the À nancial year 128,220 80,845
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17. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the À nancial year (16,079,686) (17,144,355)

Net proÀ t attributable to the members of the parent entity (421,234) 1,728,369

Dividends paid - (663,700)

Accumulated losses at the end of the À nancial year (16,500,920) (16,079,686)

18. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Globa l  Hea l th L im ited has a 93 . 8% (2016: 93 .8 %) inte res t  in  the subs id ia r y Wo r k i ng Sy s tems 

So l ut ions (Mal ays i a) Sdn Bhd. Reta i ned ear n ings at t r ib utab le to the non - cont ro l l i ng inte res t  a re 

as fo l l ow s:

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Balance at the beginning of the À nancial year 76 408

Non-controlling interests attributable to this entity is as follows:

- share of proÀ t/(loss)

- share of currency translation reserve
-

(324)

(8)

Balance at the end of the À nancial year 76 76

19. PARTICULARS IN RELATION TO CONTROLLED ENTIT IES
Globa l  Hea l th L im i ted, inco r porated in Aus t ra l ia,  i s  the u l t im ate parent ent i t y.  I t s l ega l fo r m 

i s  a pub l i c company and the Company i s  dom ici led i n V icto r ia.  Un les s  s tated oth er w i se,  a l l 

subs id ia r i es  p r i nc ipa l  act iv i t y  i s  the sa le and suppor t  of  app l icat i on sof t wa re fo r  th e heal thcare 

secto r.

Controlled Entity
Place of 

Incorporation

Type of 

Security

Interest 

2018

Interest 

2017

Global Health (Australia) Sdn Bhd Kuala Lumpur
Ordinary 

Shares
100% 100%

Working Systems Solutions (Malaysia) 

Sdn Bhd
Kuala Lumpur

Ordinary 

Shares
94% 94%

Working Systems Solutions Pty Ltd Victoria
Ordinary 

shares
100% 100%

Uni U International Pty Ltd Western Australia
Ordinary 

shares
100% 100%

Working Systems Solutions (Singapore) 

Pte Ltd
Singapore

Ordinary 

shares
100% 100%

Bourke Johnston Systems Pty Ltd Victoria
Ordinary 

shares
100% 100%

Working Systems Software Pty Ltd Western Australia
Ordinary 

shares
100% 100%

Statewide Unit Trust Western Australia Units 100% 100%
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20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The G roup’s  f in ancia l  i n s t r ument s cons i s t  p r i ma r i l y of  t rade receivab les ,  t rade payab les and 

bo r row ings .  T he G roup does not have s ign i f icant r i sk  ex posu re to f inanc ia l  in s t r uments  and 

as such r i sk  ex posu res a re genera l l y managed as pa r t  of  the G roup’s ove ra l l  s t ra teg i c and 

ope rat iona l r i s k  m anagem ent s t rateg ies .   Conseq uent ly,  th e re i s  cu r rent ly no spec i f ic  r i sk 

m it igat i ng techn iques emp loyed.  Howeve r,  a s the G roup expands both dom es t ica l l y  and 

inte r nat i ona l ly,  management cont i nues to mon i to r  i t s  ex posu re an d w i l l  imp lem ent su i tab le 

po l i c ies w hen deemed necessa r y.  

The f inancia l  in s t r ument s he ld by th e G roup a re as fo l lows:

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,157,536 2,543,412

Trade and other receivables 6 2,262,567 1,962,009

3,420,103 4,505,421

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities  at amortised cost:

Trade and other payables 11 (1,312,032) (1,079,282)

Borrowings 12 (1,686,170) (1,468,760)

(2,998,202) (2,548,042)

The G roup i s  ex posed to  fo re ign cu r ren cy f l uctuat ions  due to loan accounts  b et ween re lated 

ent i t ies be ing unhedged and requ i r ing payment i n Aust ra l ian do l la r  at an un dete r m ined date 

in  the futu re.

a. CREDIT RISK 

Cred i t  r i s k  refe r s to the r i sk  that the counte r par t y  w i l l  defau l t  on i t s cont ractua l ob l igat ions 

resu l t i ng i n f in ancia l  lo s s to the Group and essent ia l ly  a r i ses f rom ho ld ings of  cash and depos i t s , 

t rade rece ivab l es  and l oans rece ivab l e as wel l  a s f rom the parent’s  potent i a l  ob l igat ions  un de r 

th e in dem ni t y guarantee p rovi ded to b ank s. The r i sk  i s  la rge ly  managed th rough a po l icy of 

on ly  dea l i ng w i th c red i t wor thy counte r par t ies .   Pe r iod i c as sessment s  of  debto r bal ances a re 

under taken and p rov i s i ons fo r  impa i r ment a re recogn i sed whe re app ropr i ate.

Max i mum ex posu re to c red i t r i sk  w i th out tak i ng account of  any co l late ra l  he ld o r other  c red i t 

en hancements a r i s ing f rom the G roup’s  recogn i sed f i nanc ia l  a sset s i s  cons ide red to be 

equ iva lent to the i r  car r y ing va lues at repo r t ing date.  Max i mum ex posu res a r i s ing f rom the 

indem ni t y gua rantee a re as  d i sc lo sed at Note 24:  Comm itm ent s and Cont i ngencies .   The Group 

does not have any s ign i f icant c red i t  r i s k  ex posu re to any s ing le counte r par t y o r  g roups of 

counte r par t ies  hav ing s im i la r characte r i s t i cs .

The ma jo r i t y of cus tom e rs  have long s tand in g b us i ness  re lat ionsh ips w i th the Group and the i r 

c red i t  qua l i t y w i th respect to t rade receivables i s  as sessed as h igh .

A l l  cash and cash equ iva lent s a re he ld w ith la rge reputable f inancia l  i n s t i tut ion s  w i th i n Aus t ra l ia , 

Malays ia and S in gapo re and therefore c red i t  r i s k i s  cons i de red ve r y low.
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Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

 Cash at Bank and deposits

Australian banks 1,143,744 2,529,019

Malaysian banks 13,792 13,791

1,157,536 2,542,810

b. LIQUIDITY RISK

L iqu id i t y  r i sk  i s  managed th rough m on i to r i ng cu r rent funds ava i lab le,  und raw n fac i l i t ies  and 

ant i c ipated recove r y of receivab les and compa r i ng w i th futu re fund ing requ i rem ents conta in ed 

in managem ent budgets  and fo recas t s .   I n th i s rega rd, the t im in g of ex pected set t l em ent of 

l i ab i l i t ies  i s  a l so ana lysed so as to m i n im i se r i s k w i th respect to obl igat ions  becomi ng past due.  

Th i s  i s  cons i s tent  w i th the p r io r yea r.

The matu r i t y  p rof i l e  of  the Grou p’s f inancia l l iab i l i t ies  i s  p resented in the fo l low ing tab le based 

on cont ractua l matu r i t y dates and rep resent und i scounted cash f lows .

Group 30 June 2018
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years

Total 

contracted 

cash Á ows

$ $ $ $

Financial liabilities due for 

payment

Trade and Other Payables (1,312,032) - - (1,312,032)

Borrowings (515,657) (1,170,513) - (1,686,170)

Total expected outÁ ows (1,827,689) (1,170,513) - (2,998,202)

Financial assets – cash Á ows 

realisable

Cash and cash equivalents 1,157,536 - - 1,157,536

Trade and other receivables 2,262,567 - - 2,262,567

Total anticipated inÁ ow on 
À nancial instruments

3,420,103 - - 3,420,103

Net inÁ ow/(outÁ ow) on 
À nancial instruments

1,592,414 (1,170,513) - 421,901
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Group 30 June 2017
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years

Total 

contracted 

cash Á ows

$ $ $ $

Financial liabilities due for 

payment

Trade and Other Payables (1,079,282) - - (1,079,282)

Borrowings (389,880) (1,078,880) - (1,468,760)

Total expected outÁ ows (1,469,162) (1,078,880) - (2,548,042)

Financial assets – cash Á ows 

realisable

Cash and cash equivalents 2,543,412 - - 2,543,412

Trade and other receivables 1,821,098 140,911 - 1,962,009

Total anticipated inÁ ow on 
À nancial instruments

4,364,510 140,911 - 4,505,421

Net inÁ ow/(outÁ ow) on À nancial 

instruments
2,895,348 (937,969) - 1,957,379

c.  MARKET RISK

The G roup i s  ex posed to inte res t  ra te an d fo re ign cu r rency r i sk .  

( i )  In te res t  ra te r i sk

The G roup has ex posu re to va r iab le inte res t  rates  on m on ies that a re kept in  at - ca l l  bank 

accounts .  

Fo r sens i t i v i t ies re lat in g to i nte res t  rate r i s k ,  refe r to p a rag raph ( i i i )  be l ow.

( i i )  Fo re i gn exchange r i sk

The G roup cont ro l s  subs id ia r ies  in  Ma lays i a and S ingapore and par t i c i pates in a jo int ventu re 

in  Mal ays ia.  The G roup i s  th e refo re exposed to fo re ign exchange r i sk  a r i s i ng f rom exposu re to 

cu r rencies of these respect i ve count r ies .   Such r i s k a r i ses  f rom futu re t ransact ions and as sets 

and l iab i l i t ie s that a re den om inated in funct i ona l cu r renc ies other  that the Aus t ra l ian do l la r.  

Management does n ot engage in an act ive p rog ram of hedg ing ex posu re to fo re ig n cu r renc ies .

The ex posu re to fo re ign cu r rency r i sk  at repor t i ng date i s  rep resented by th e fo l l ow i ng ba lances:

Consolidated Group

2018 2017

MYR MYR

Assets denominated in foreign currency 41,100 48,181

Liabilities denominated in foreign 

currency
- -

Net exposure to foreign currency 41,100 48,181

Fo r sens i t i v i t ies re lat in g to fo re ign cu r rency r i sk ,  re fe r to pa rag raph ( i i i )  be low.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)



66

RE VI EW OF 
OPE RAT ION S

D I RE CTORS’ 
REPORT

CORPORATE 
GOVE RN AN CE 

S TATE ME N T

D I RE CTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN N UA L 
F IN AN CIA L 

REPORT

SHAREHOL DE R 
IN FORM AT I ON

CORPORATE 
D I RE CTORY

CONTE NT S

ANNUAL REPORT

( i i i )    Sens i t iv i t y Ana l ys i s

Interest  Rate Risk and Foreign Currency Risk
The fo l low ing sens i t i v i t y ana ly s i s dem ons t rates  the ef fect on the cu r rent  yea r resu l t s  and equ i t y 

w h ich cou ld resu l t  f rom a reasonably pos s i b le ch ang e i n i nte res t  rate and fo re ign cu r rency 

r i s k s .   The ana l ys i s  i s  i nd icat ive on ly and as sum es that the m ovement i n the par t icu l a r  va r iab le 

i s  i ndepen de nt of  the othe r  va r iab les and that a l l  oth e r va r iables rem a ined constant.

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Change in proÀ t after tax

+/- in interest rate by 0.5% +/-5,800 +/-11,000

+/- in $A/MYR rate by 15% +/-2,100 +/-2,500

Change in Equity

+/- in interest rate by 0.5% +/-5,800 +/-11,000

+/- in $A/MYR rate by 15% +/-2,100 +/-2,500

( iv)  Capi ta l  R i sk Managemen t
Management cont ro l s  the capi ta l  of  the G roup i n o rde r to mai nta in a good debt to equ i t y 

rat io,  p rov ide the sha reho lde r s w i th adequate retu r n s and ensu re that  the G roup can fun d i t s 

ope rat ions  and cont inue as a going conce r n .  The G roup’s debt and cap i ta l  com p r i ses o rd ina r y 

sha re capi ta l  suppo r ted by f i nan ci a l a sset s .

The G roup does not cu r rent l y have s ign i f icant debt cap i ta l  emp l oyed in the bus in es s .  The re a re 

no ex te r na l ly im posed cap i ta l  req u i reme nts .

Fair  value est imation
The fa i r  va l ues o f f i nan ci a l  as set s  an d f inanc ia l  l iab i l i t ies a re as p resented in the conso l idated 

s tatement of  f inancia l pos i t ion.  Fa i r va lues a re those amount s  at w h ich an as set cou ld be 

exchanged, o r  a l iab i l i t y  set t led, bet ween k now ledgeab l e,  w i l l i ng par t ies  in an a rm’s l ength 

t ransact ion.Fa i r  va l ues de r ived may be based on i nfo r m at i on that i s  es t im ated o r  sub ject to 

judgment,  whe re chan ges i n a ssumpt ions may have a mate r ia l  im pact on the am ount s es t imated. 

The net fa i r va lue of  cash and cash eq u ival ent s  an d non i nte res t  bear ing m oneta r y f i nanc ia l 

a sset s and f in ancia l  l iab i l i t ies of the Grou p app rox i mates the i r car r y ing amount s .The ca r r y ing 

va lue le ss i mpa i r ment p rov i s ion of t rade rece ivab les  and payables  a re as su med to ap prox i mate 

th e i r fa i r  va l ues due to th e i r sh or t te r m natu re.

2018 2017
Net Carrying 

Value

$

Net Fair value

$

Net Carrying 
Value

$

Net Fair value                

$

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,157,536 1,157,536 2,543,412 2,543,412

Trade and other receivables 2,262,567 2,262,567 1,962,009 1,962,009

Total À nancial assets 3,420,103 3,420,103 4,505,421 4,505,421
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables (1,312,032) (1,312,032) (1,079,282) (1,079,282)

Borrowings (1,686,170) (1,686,170) (1,468,760) (1,468,760)

Total À nancial liabilities (2,998,202) (2,998,202) (2,548,042) (2,548,042)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)



RE VI EW OF 
OPE RAT ION S

D I RE CTORS’ 
REPORT

CORPORATE 
GOVE RN AN CE 

S TATE ME N T

D I RE CTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN N UA L 
F IN AN CIA L 

REPORT

SHAREHOL DE R 
IN FORM AT I ON

CORPORATE 
D I RE CTORY

CONTE NT S

67
ANNUAL REPORT

21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

a. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN

The Emp loyee Sha re O pt ion P lan was adopted when the Com pany was l i s ted. The p l an a l lows 

th e Com pany to g rant opt ions  ove r sha res to key execut ives  and d i recto r s  an d othe r emp loyees 

as se lected by the D i recto r s to enab le them to par t ic ipate i n th e futu re g row th and p rof i tab i l i t y 

of the Company, to p rov ide an i ncent i ve and reward fo r  the i r  cont r ibut ions  and to at t ract and 

ma inta in pe r sonne l .  The opt ions a re i s sued at no cons iderat ion.  The exe rc i se p r ice of  opt ions  i s 

based on th e wei ghted ave rage mar ket  p r ice of  the Company’s Sha res  du r ing the f ive t rad ing 

days up to and inc l ud i ng the date of  g rant of the opt ion o r  such oth er  date o r  pe r iod as the 

D i rector s cons ide r appropr iate.  Opt ion s ves t one -th i rd each year over  th ree year s  f rom the 

g rant date and have an ex pi r y date of f i ve yea r s f rom th e g rant date. 

The parent  ent i t y  has adopted t wo incent ive p l ans to enab l e emp l oyees and d i recto r s to 

pa r t ic ipate in  ow ne rsh ip of  G loba l  Hea l th L i m i ted.  The d i recto r s  have dete r m in ed that the tota l 

num be r of  secur i t i es w h i ch may be i s sued pur suant to the E xem pt Em p loyee Sha re P lan and 

Employee Sha re Opt ion P lan in  any f ive -year pe r iod m ust not  exceed 5% of  the tota l  nu mbe r 

of secur i t ies  on of fe r  f rom t im e to t ime.  T h i s  l im i tat i on on ly app l i es  to new of fe r s of secur i t ies 

by the pa rent ent i t y and not to ex i s t i ng secur i t ies p u rchased on mar ket  under the E xe mpt 

Employee Sha re P lan .

The opt ions i s sued unde r the E SOP a re not quoted on th e Aust ra l ian Stock E xchange.

Employee Sha re O pt ions a re i s sued under the te r m s and condi t ions of the P lan as d i scl osed 

on the Company’s webs i te.   Shou ld  an employee cease em p loyment befo re th e complet ion 

of t wo yea rs  af te r the i s sue of any emp loyee opt ion, th e opt i on i s sued automat ica l l y  lapses , 

except wh ere ces sat ion i s due to death o r tota l  pe r m anent d i sab i l i t y,  ret i rem ent,  redundancy 

o r  any othe r reason, based on w h ich the d i recto r s  be l ieve i s  fa i r and reason ab le to war rant 

th e emp loye e mai nta in i ng the i r  r ig ht to exerc i se the opt ion in  w h ich case they w i l l  have s i x (6) 

months  to exe rc i se the opt ions .

Consolidated Group

2018

Number

2017

Number

Opening balance 2,140,000 1,520,000

Issued - 1,000,000

Exercised - (300,000)

Forfeited (530,000) (80,000)

Closing balance 1,610,000 2,140,000

H i s to r ica l  vo l at i l i t y  has been the bas i s  fo r  dete r m in i ng expected sh a re p r i ce vo lat i l i t y  as  i t  i s 

a ssumed that th i s i s  i n d icat ive of fu tu re movements .

The mar ket p r ice of  the o rd i na r y sha res  of G l ob al Hea l th L i m i ted was $0 .20 on 3 0 June 2018 

($ 0.32 on 3 0 J un e 2017).
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Set out  be low a re summ ar i es o f opt i ons g ranted under the p lan:

Consolidated and parent entity - 2018

Grant Date
Expiry 

Date

Exercise 

Price

Balance at 

start of the 

year

Number

Granted 

during the 

year

Number

Exercised 

during the 

year

Number

Expired/ 

forfeited 

during 

the year

Number

Balance 

at the 

end of 

the year

Number

Exercisable 

at the end 

of the year

Number

19 Dec 2013 19 Dec 2017 $0.65 530,000 - - (530,000) - -

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000 - - - 300,000 300,000

10 Jun 2016 10 Jun 2020 $0.65 310,000 - - - 310,000 310,000

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2019 $0.75 400,000 - - - 400,000 200,333

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2021 $0.75 600,000 - - - 600,000 240,000

TOTALS 2,140,000 - - (530,000) 1,610,000 1,050,333

Weighted average exercise price $0.71 - - $0.65 $0.73 $0.73

Weighted average share price $0.2600

Consolidated and parent entity - 2017

Grant Date
Expiry 

Date

Exercise 

Price

Balance at 

start of the 

year

Number

Granted 

during the 

year

Number

Exercised 

during the 

year

Number

Expired/ 

forfeited 

during 

the year

Number

Balance at 

the end of 

the year

Number

Exercisable 

at the end 

of the year

Number

5 July 2013 5 Jul 2017 $0.15 300,000 - (300,000) - - -

19 Dec 2013 19 Dec 2017 $0.65 530,000 - - - 530,000 530,000

26 May 2014 26 May 2019 $0.75 300,000 - - - 300,000 300,000

10 Jun 2016 10 Jun 2020 $0.65 390,000 - - (80,000) 310,000 260,000

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2019 $0.75 - 400,000 - - 400,000 133,333

19 Dec 2016 30 Nov 2021 $0.75 - 600,000 - - 600,000 120,000

TOTALS 1,520,000 1,000,000 (300,000) (80,000) 2,140,000 1,343,333

Weighted average exercise price $0.57 $0.75 $0.15 $0.65 $0.71 $0.67

Weighted average share price $0.3916

b. EXEMPT EMPLOYEE SHARE PLAN (‘EESP’)

A plan u nde r w h ich sha res  may be i s sued by th e Comp any to em ployees fo r no cash cons ide rat ion 

was adopted when th e Com pany was l i s ted. A l l  d i recto r s ,  o f f icer s  o r emp loyees w ho a re f rom 

t ime to t im e eng aged in fu l l  o r  pa r t  t ime wor k fo r the Company a re e l i g ib l e to pa r t ic ipate in 

th e E xempt Employee Sha re P lan. 

Unde r the p lan, e l i g ib l e em ployees may be g ranted u p to $1,0 0 0 wor th o f fu l l y  pa id o rd ina r y 

sha res  in th e Company fo r  no cash cons ide rat ion.  T he mar ket  va l ue of the sha res w i l l  be 

measu red as the ma rket p r i ce quoted fo r bu ye r s of  the Company sha res  at th e c lose of t rad ing 

on the day imm ediate l y p reced in g the date of  the of fer  by the D i rector s a s pub l i shed by the 

A SX . 
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Of fe r s  unde r the p lan a re at the d i sc ret ion of the Company and th e sha res  can not b e t ran s fe r red 

o r  a ss igned by th e ho lder  w i th in the pe r iod of  th ree year s  f rom the date of i s su e o r  t ran s fe r 

to the ho lder  un l es s th e ho l der  ceases employment  w i th  the Com pany ea r l i e r  th an th at date 

except that the hol der  may at any t i me t ran s fe r  a l l  o r  any of h i s  Sha res to h i s  spouse o r  to a 

com pany th e m ajo r i t y o f th e i s sued sha res  in w h i ch a re benef ic ia l l y ow ned by h im o r  to any 

t r us t  that the ho lde r i s  a benef ic ia r y o f.

Du r ing the year,  n o sha res  we re i s sued unde r the p lan (2 017:  N i l) .

 

22. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

a. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The fo l l ow ing per sons we re D i recto r s and Key Man agement Pe r sonne l of  the Com pany du r ing 

th e f inanc ia l  yea r :

M r S P ynt  Cha i r man – I ndependent N on - E xecut i ve

M r M Che r ian  Ch i ef  E xecut ive Of f icer  and Managi ng D i recto r

M r G Smi th  D i recto r  – I ndependent N on - E xecut ive

M r R Know les  D i recto r  – I ndependent N on - E xecut ive

M s P Bee rens  D i recto r  – I ndependent N on - E xecut ive

M r D Groenveld P r i nc ipa l A rch i tect

M r K Jayesu r ia  Ch i ef  Ope rat i ng Of f ice r

b. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Refe r to the Remu ne rat ion Repor t in the D i recto r s’  Repo r t  fo r deta i l s  of the re mu ne rat ion pa id 

o r  payable to each m ember of  the G rou p’s Key Managem ent Pe r sonnel  fo r  the yea r ended 3 0 

June 2 018 .  The tota l  remune rat ion pa i d to Key Management Pe r son ne l of  the Company and the 

G roup du r ing the year a re as fo l low s:

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Short-term employee beneÀ ts 665,246 653,661

Other long-term beneÀ ts 9,365 6,624

Share-based payments 47,374 34,866

Post-employment beneÀ ts 107,862 101,350

829,847 796,501

Sha res
The inte res t  of  key management pe r sonne l and th e i r  re lated ent i t ies  i n sha res  of  the Com pany 

as at 3 0 Jun e 2018 a re:

Total number of shares Number of shares sold Number of shares acquired

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Mr D 

Groenveld
300,000 300,000 - - - 300,000

Mr K Jayesuria 4,000 4,000 - - - -

304,000 304,000 - - - 300,000
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Opt ions
The i nte res t  of  Key Managem ent Pe r sonnel  an d the i r  re lated ent i t ie s  in opt ions  of  the Com pany 

as at 3 0 Jun e 2018 a re:

Total number of options
Number of option granted 

during the year

Number of options 

exercised during the year

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Mr D 

Groenveld
- - - - - -

Mr K Jayesuria 600,000 600,000 - 300,000 - -

600,000 600,000 - 300,000 - -

Loans Payable
The Com pany cu r rent l y has out s tand ing $61,794 payab le to Mathew Che r ian (2 017:  $ 47,5 05) 

re l ated to wages payments  in  a r rea r s .

23. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS 

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Amounts received, or due and receivable by the auditors of the entity 

for:

ShineWing Australia

       Taxation services for controlled entities 3,409 -

       Auditing or reviewing the À nancial report 106,357 65,000

-  TY Teoh International (Malaysia) [Part of the MSI Group Alliance]

       Auditing or reviewing the À nancial report of controlled 

entities  

601 3,150

 Taxation services for controlled entities - 1,500

- J Wong and Associates (Singapore)

         Auditing or reviewing the À nancial report 4,240 1,500

114,607 71,150

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

a. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the À nancial statements and payable:

Not later than 1 year 214,907 162,725

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 452,643 547,156

Later than 5 years - -

667,550 709,881

The parent ent i t y’s  ope rat in g l ease fo r  the re l ocated Me lbou r ne of f i ce com menced on 14 Ju ly 

2 014 w i th  reduced f loo r  space in  the same bu i ld i ng .  The Company s igned on fo r  a l ease te r m 

of 7 year s .
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b. GUARANTEES

Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

The parent has provided a cash security bond in favour of the 

property owner of the parent entity’s leased premises in Melbourne, 

Australia.
102,187 102,187

In the op in ion of the D i recto r s ,  the Group d id not have any cont in gencies  as  at  30 Ju ne 2 018 .

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

          Consolidated Group

2018

$

2017

$

The following reÁ ects the income and share data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings 

per share:

(Loss)/proÀ t after tax from continuing operations attributable to 

owners of the parent
(421,234) 1,728,369 

Net (loss) from continuing operations attributable to non-controlling 

interests
- (324)

Earnings  used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 

(after tax)
(421,234) 1,728,045 

Earnings from continuing operations used in calculating basic and 

diluted earnings per share (before tax)
(445,082) 1,932,019

Number of 

Shares
Number of 

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating 

basic earnings per share:
33,450,679 33,152,050

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating 

diluted earnings per share:
35,590,680 35,292,050

2018 

Cents
2017

cents

Basic earnings after tax per share (cents per share) (1.259) 5.212

Diluted earnings per share (after tax) (1.183) 4.896

Basic Earnings Per Share (before tax) (1.330) 5.827

Diluted Earnings Per Share (before tax) (1.250) 5.474

Ear n ing s pe r  sha re fo r d i scont inued ope rat ions was N I L (2 017:  N IL).

26. SEGMENT INFORMATION

OPERATING SEGMENTS 
The Group ope rates in  the compute r techno logy, sof t ware and se r v ices indust r y w i th pa r t icu la r 

em phas i s on hea l thcare and as soc iated p rofess iona l se r v ices.  Th e G roup h as ident i f ied i t s 

ope rat ing segments  based on the inte r na l repo r t s that a re rev iewed and used by the execut ive 

management team (‘ the ch ief op erat in g dec i s ion make r’)  in a s ses s i ng per fo r mance and in 

dete r m i n ing the a l locat ion of  resou rces.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)



72

RE VI EW OF 
OPE RAT ION S

D I RE CTORS’ 
REPORT

CORPORATE 
GOVE RN AN CE 

S TATE ME N T

D I RE CTORS’ 
DECL AR AT ION

AN N UA L 
F IN AN CIA L 

REPORT

SHAREHOL DE R 
IN FORM AT I ON

CORPORATE 
D I RE CTORY

CONTE NT S

ANNUAL REPORT

The operat ing segments  a re i dent i f ied by m anag ement based on the natu re of  the se r v ice 

p rov ided. D i sc rete f inan ci a l  i nfo rmat ion about each of these ope rat ing se r v ice l i nes  i s  repo r ted 

to the execut ive management team on at least a month ly bas i s .  T he repor tabl e segm ents a re 

based on aggregated ope rat i ng segm ents dete r m ined by th e s i m i la r i t y  of the se r v ices p rov ided, 

th e s im i la r i t y  of  the cus tomer bases,  the common repor t ing and management sy s tem s used and 

th e common regu la r i t y env i ron ment  app l icab le to each repo r tab le segm ent. The re i s a c l ea r 

des ignat ion of  respons ib i l i t y  an d accountab i l i t y  by the ch ief operat i ng dec i s ion make r s fo r  the 

management and pe r fo r mance of these repo r tab le segm ents . 

The G roup com pr i ses  th e fo l l ow i ng ma in ope rat ing segm ents :

• Acute I nfo r mat i on sys tem app l i cat ions fo r the h osp i ta l  and day su rge r y m ar ket to 

de l i ve r  bet te r and mo re integ rated hea lth ca re.

• Non -Acute Compreh ens ive su i te of app l icat ions  that p rov ide the m anagem ent of 

popu lat ion outcomes fo r commun it ie s of com mon i nte res t.

• Othe r Product s  and se r v ices de l i vered to non - h eal thcare cus tomer s an d i nc lude 

revenues and ex penses as soc iated w i th th i rd pa r t y  p roduct s and cost 

recove r ies  f rom custome r s .

• Cor porate E xpend i tu re assoc iated w i th Corpo rate,  Sa les  and Mar ket ing act iv i t i es .

SEGMENT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The G roup gene ra l l y account s fo r inte r- segm ent sa les and t rans fe r s  a s i f  the sa l es o r t rans fe r s 

we re to th i rd par t ies  at  cu r rent mar ket p r ices.   Revenues a re at t r i buted to geog raph i c a reas 

based on the locat ion of  the asset s  p roduci ng the revenues.  Du r ing the f inan ci a l yea r  the re 

we re no changes in segm ent accou nt ing po l ic i es  that had a mate r ia l  ef fect on the segment 

in fo r mat ion.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

A lthough th e G roup’s d iv i s ions a re m anaged on a g loba l bas i s  they ope rate i n t wo ma in 

geog raph ica l  a reas:

Aus t ra l ia

Th i s  i s  th e home count r y of the mai n ope rat ing ent i t y.  The co r porate head of f ice i s  based in 

Melbour n e, V i cto r ia w i th a sma l l  num be r of em pl oyees a l so located i n oth er s tates  in Aus t ra l ia 

fo r the p rov i s ion of  p rofess ion a l  se r v ices and p roduct  deve lopment. 

Mal ays ia

I n  p r io r  yea r s ,  the Group ope rated in th e ASE AN reg ion w i th loca l  resou rces emp loyed to 

p rov ide suppor t  to  Southeas t A s ian cl ient s  of  the Group.  Cur rent ly,  the Com pany’s c l i n ica l 

sof t wa re, Maste rca re EMR, i s  used by the Ma lays ian M in i s t r y of  Hea l th’s ME NTARI commun i t y 

me nta l  hea l th p rog ram. The Com pany, th rough i t s Ma lays ian d i s t r ibuto r,  i s  l ook i ng to fu r the r i t s 

en gagement in th e mar ket. 

I n  p resent in g in fo r mat ion on the bas i s of geog raph ica l segments ,  segment reven ue i s  based 

on the geog raph ica l locat ion of cus tome r s .   Segm ent as sets  a re based on the geog raph ica l 

locat ion of the as set s .
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27. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconci l ia t i on of  Ope rat i ng (Loss)/Prof i t  befo re Income Ta x to Net Cash p rov ided by Ope rat ing 

Act iv i t ies

Consolidated Group

2018

 $

2017

 $

Operating (loss)/proÀ t before income tax (445,082) 1,932,019

Add /(deduct) non-cash items:

 Amortisation of Intangibles 132,778 266,021

 Depreciation of À xed assets 63,624 87,931

 Impairment of intangible assets - 917,381

 Employee share option expense 47,375 50,687

Net cash (outÁ ow)/inÁ ow from operating activities before 
change in assets and liabilities (201,305) 3,254,039

Change in assets and liabilities during the period:

 (Increase) in trade and other receivables (300,558) (111,306)

 (Increase)/decrease in other assets (246,295) 700,749

 Increase/(decrease) in provisions 54,089 (32,138)

 Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 940,192 (260,065)

Net cash inÁ ow from operating activities 246,123 3,551,279

28. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE
The re have been no s i gn i f i cant event s  su bseq uent  to repor t ing date.

29. DIVIDENDS
No D iv idends we re decla red or  pa id i n 2 018 .  No p rov i s i on i s  made fo r  d iv i dends on o r  befo re 

th e end of the yea r. 

Du r ing 2017,  the Com pany decla red and pa id t wo spec ia l  d iv i dends of  1 cent each. Deta i l s  of 

d iv ide nds dec la red and or  pa id:

Dividend Details Special 

Dividend

Special 

Dividend

TOTAL

Date dividend declared 14 Sep 2016 24 Feb 2017

Date dividend paid 25 Nov 2016 9 Mar 2017

Franked amount per share - - -

Unfranked amount per share $0.01 $0.01 $0.02

Total per share $0.01 $0.01 $0.02

Total value of dividend paid $330,150 $333,550 $663,700
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30. GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION

Global Health Limited

2018

$

2017

$

Assets

Current Assets 4,371,068 4,935,761 

Non-Current Assets 7,139,465 5,572,401

Total Assets 11,510,533 10,508,162

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 3,829,566 3,484,719

Non-Current Liabilities 3,172,557 2,392,059

Total Liabilities 7,002,123 5,876,778

Net Assets 4,508,410 4,631,384

Equity

  Contributed equity 20,898,742 20,836,242

  Reserves 152,454 80,846

  Accumulated Losses (16,542,786) (16,285,704)

Total Equity 4,508,410 4,631,384

Financial Performance

  (Loss)/proÀ t for the year after tax (424,456) 1,766,025

  Other comprehensive income - -

Total Comprehensive (loss)/income (424,456) 1,766,025

Other than that stated in Note 24 to the À nancial statements, the Company is not subject to any contingent 

liabilities or contractual commitments 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)
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5.   DIRECTORS DECLARATION
I n  the op in ion of the D i recto r s of G loba l  Hea lth L im i ted (‘ th e Com pany’):

a.  the f inanc ia l  s tatements  and n otes, set out  on pages 32 to 75 a re in accordance w ith 

th e Corpo rat ion s Act 2 0 01 inc l ud in g:

i .  g i v ing a t r ue and fa i r  v iew of  f inanc ia l  pos i t ion of the conso l idated ent i t y as at 

3 0 J une 2 018 and of  i t s  pe r fo r man ce, fo r  th e year ended on that date;

i i .  i i .  Com pl y i ng w i th Account ing Standa rds in Au st ra l ia and the Co r porat ion s 

Regu lat ions 2 0 01;

i i i .  i i i .  Comp ly ing w i th I nte r nat iona l Repo r t ing Standa rds as d i sc losed in Note 1;  and

b. The re a re reasonable g rou nds to be l ieve that the Com pany w i l l  be ab l e to  pay i t s 

debt s as and when they becom e due and payab le.

The D i recto r s  have been g i ven the dec la rat i ons requi red by sect ion 295A of the Co r po rat ions 

Act 2 0 01 f rom the Ch ief  E xecut ive Of f ice r  and Ch ief F i nanc ia l  Of f ice r fo r  the year ended 3 0 

June 2 018 .

Th i s  dec la rat ion i s  made i n accordan ce w i th a reso lut i on of the D i recto r s .

On beha l f  of th e Boa rd

Steven Le ig h P ynt

Non - E xecut i ve Ch ai r man

Melbour n e, 27 September 2018
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6.   SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
Th i s  sha reho l de r  i n fo r mat i on i s  made up to 25 September 2018 .

6.1.   SHAREHOLDING
1.  D i s t r i but i on of  Sha reh o l de r  Numb er s

Category (size of holding) Number of Holders No. of Shares

1 – 1,000 35 10,375

1,001 – 5,000 140 441,161

5,001 – 10,000 85 668,418

10,001 – 100,000 103 3,799,682

100,001 and over 31 28,510,623

TOTAL 394 33,430,259
2.  The n um be r of secur i t y inves to r s  ho ld ing le ss  than a ma r ketab le pa rce l of  2,3 8 0 

secur i t i es  ($ 0.21 per  sha re 25 Septemb er 2 018) i s  64  and they ho ld 60,124 secur i t ie s .  A n 

unm ar ketab l e pa rce l of sha res  i s  gene ra l l y a pa rce l  of sha res  w i th a tota l  va lue of  les s 

th an $5 0 0.

3 .  The nam es of  the t went y la rges t ho lde r s  of  o rd i na r y sha res  a re:

Shareholder No. of shares held % of issued shares

MICRON HOLDINGS PTY LTD (Cherian Family Account) 13,558,334 40.56

MICRON HOLDINGS PTY LTD (Micron Holdings Pty Ltd Superfund A/c) 4,311,036 12.90

MRS ELIZABETH MAY PRISCILLA THOMAS 1,530,702 4.58

PACIFIC NOMINEES LIMITED 1,502,196 4.49

ALUMOOTIL MATHEW CHERIAN 750,000 2.24

ANNEX PARTNERS PTY LTD 500,000 1.50

TRIGLOBAL MANAGEMENT LIMITED 500,000 1.50

B & R JAMES INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED 500,000 1.50

CONNAUGHT CONSULTANTS (FINANCE) PTY LTD 458,500 1.37

DR SERENE LIM 400,000 1.20

MR DAVID LEROY BOYLES 400,000 1.20

LOMAS SUPERANNUATION PTY LTD 315,000 0.94

EMERALD SHARES PTY LIMITED 300,000 0.90

ROXANNE INVESTMENTS PTY LTD 300,000 0.90

DAMON GROENVELD 300,000 0.90

MR RAJIV PARAMANATHAN 280,000 0.84

MS SERENE LIM & MR NICHOLAS RUSSELL WARD 274,480 0.82

CEBON 235,335 0.70

ASKET PTY LTD 226,074 0.68

DADIASO HOLDINGS PTY LTD 200,000 0.60

MR BRENDAN THOMAS BIRTHISTLE 186,000 0.56

DR MARIE HEITZ 167,066 0.50

LILYFIELD HOLDINGS PTY LTD 150,000 0.45

MR MICHAEL JOHN THROWER & MRS SUSAN KATHRYN THROWER 136,035 0.41

BUJO PTY LTD 130,000 0.39

Total top 20 holders 27,610,758 82.59

6.2.   SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholder No. of shares Percentage

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Cherian Family Account) 13,558,334 40.56

Micron Holdings Pty Ltd (Micron Holdings Pty Ltd Superfund A/c) 4,311,036 12.90



7.  AUDITORS REPORT 

ShineWing Australia ABN 39 533 589 331. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. ShineWing Australia is an independent member of ShineWing 
International Limited  members in principal cities throughout the world. 

 
 

 

 

INDEPENDENT  

TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial report of Global Health Limited 

30 June 2018, the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the director   
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:  
 

a) 30 June 2018 and of its financial 
performance for the year then ended; and  

 

b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.  
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified opinion.  
 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 1(s) in the financial report, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss before 
tax of $445,082 during the year ended 30 June 2018 and generated negative total cash flows of $1,385,876 
during the year. As stated in Note 1(s), these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in 
Note 1(s), indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Gr
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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8.   CORPORATE DIRECTORY
Di recto r s

M r Steven Le ig h P ynt ( Independent N on - E xecut ive Cha i r man) 

M r Mathew Che r ian (Ch ief  E xecut ive Of f icer  and Managin g D i recto r)

M r Grant Sm i th ( In dependent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r )

M r Rober t  Kn ow l es AO ( Independent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r)

M s Pat t ie Bee rens ( I ndependent Non - E xecut ive D i recto r)

Com pany Secreta r y
M r Sam Butche r

He ad O f f i ce

Leve l  2 ,  6 07 Bou r ke St reet

Melbour n e, V icto r ia 3 0 0 0

Aust ra l ia

Te lephone: +61 (3) 9675 06 0 0

Facs i mi le:  +61 (3) 9675 0699

Emai l :  i n fo@globa l - hea l th.com 

Webs i te:  w w w.g loba l -hea l th .com 

 

Mal ays ia Re gi s te red Of f ice

B -25 -2 ,  B lock B,  Jaya One

No. 72A Ja lan Un ive r s i t i

4620 0 Peta l ing Jaya, Se langor Da r u l  Ehsan

Malays ia

Te lephone: +6 03 795 5 0955

Facs i mi le:  +6 03 7955 0959

Aud i to rs      

Sh i neWing Aus t ra l ia   

Leve l  10,  5 3 0 Co l l i n s St reet   

Melbour n e, V IC 3 0 0 0 Aus t ra l i a

Te lephone: +61 3 86 35 18 0 0   

Facs i mi le:  +61 3  8102 3 40 0

Webs i te:  w w w.sh in ew i ng .com.au 

Sha re Reg i s t ra r

L in k Mar ket Se r v ices L i m i ted

Towe r 4 ,  727 Co l l i ns  St reet

Melbour n e, V icto r ia 3 0 0 8 , 

Aust ra l ia

Te lephone: 13 0 0 5 5 4 474  

Facs i mi le:  +61 (3) 9615 984 8

Webs i te:  w w w. l ink ma r ket se r v ices.com.

au 

Emai l :  reg i s t ra r s@l i nkm ar ket se r v ices.

com.au

So l ic i to rs
Dav ies  Co l l i son Cave, Melbou rn e, 

Aust ra l ia

F in laysons,  Adel a ide, Aus t ra l ia

Ban ke rs

Bank of Weste r n Aust ra l ia Ltd

ANZ Bank Ltd

HSBC Ltd

Stock E xchange L i s t i ng

Globa l  Heal th L im i ted sh ares t rade on 

th e Aust ra l i an Stock E xchange 

Code: GLH

The home exch ange i s  Aus t ra l ian Stock 

E xchange (Me lbour ne) L im i ted

Fu r t her  I n fo rma t ion
Fo r fu r the r  in fo r mat ion about G loba l Hea l th L im i ted and i t s  ope rat ions ,  refe r  to Com pany 

announ cem ents to the Aust ra l i an Stock E xchange.

In fo r mat ion i s  a l so ava i lab le on ou r webs i te:  w w w.g loba l - hea l th .com  



ASX :  GLH
 ABN: 75 091 377 892

Global Health and Control led Ent i t ies

 www.global-health.com


